

### ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE OF THE COURTS

ROBERT C. MURPHY COURTS OF APPEAL BUILDING 361 ROWE BOULEVARD ANNAPOLIS, MARYLAND 21401

STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR GEORGE B. RIGGIN, JR.



DEPUTY STATE COURT ADMINISTRATOR FRANK BROCCOLINA

Memorandum

To:	Recipients of the Maryland Sentencing Guidelines Manual
From:	George N. Weber, Jr. Assistant Administrator
Subject:	Revision to Appendix A of the Maryland Sentencing Guidelines Manual
Date:	September 23, 1996

Enclosed is a revised copy of Appendix A of the *Maryland Sentencing Guidelines Manual*. The revision to Appendix A involves an update to the statutory references for the current Sentencing Guidelines offenses, as well as providing additional delineation for certain Sentencing Guidelines offenses that were previously merged under a single category. Further, the assault law revisions that take effect October 1, 1996, are included.

Three new Sentencing Guidelines offenses have been included; (1) Pipe Bomb, Article 27, § 139C, (2) Stalking, Article 27, § 121B, and (3) Threat of Arson, Article 27, § 9. If one of these offenses occur on or after October 1, 1996, a Sentencing Guidelines work sheet should be submitted.

If you have any questions concerning these revisions, please do not hesitate to call me at (410) 974-2186.

cc: Honorable Robert C. Murphy Honorable Joseph H. H. Kaplan George B. Riggin, Jr.

# ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE OF THE COURTS MARYLAND SENTENCING GUIDELINES

Annapolis, Maryland 21401



# MANUAL

REVISED JULY, 1987

841-1059

#### JUDGES

Hon. Marshall A. Levin, Chairperson
Hon. Howard S. Chasanow, Vice-Chairperson
Hon. Robert M. Bell
Hon. Elsbeth Levy Bothe
Hor Brodnax Cameron, Jr.
Hon. Arrie W. Davis
Hon. Joseph H. H. Kaplan
Hon. Eugene M. Lerner
Hon. James S. McAuliffe, Jr.
Hon. Audrey E. Melbourne
Hon. Calvin R. Sanders
Hon. Frederick C. Wright, III

#### EX-OFFICIO MEMBERS

Hon. Walter M. Baker, Chairman, Senate Judicial Proceedings Committee Charles G. Bernstein, Private Bar Philip G. Dantes, Chairman, Maryland Parole Commission William DeVance, Director, Division of Parole and Probation Arnold Hopkins, Commissioner of Corrections William S. Horne, Chairman, Hon. House of Delegates Committee on the Judiciary M. Kenneth Long, Jr., President, Maryland State's Attorneys Association Joseph E. Owens, Deputy Secretary, Department of Licensing and Regulation Floyd O. Pond, Executive Director, Governor's Office of Justice Assistance Bishop Robinson, Secretary, Department of Public Safety and Correctional Services

Norman N. Yankellow, Public Defender

#### STAFF

Michael V. O'Malley George N. Weber, Jr. Debruoh D. Taylor Deborah L. Forrester

i

#### PREFACE

The Maryland sentencing guidelines cover most criminal cases originating in a circuit court. Based on sentencing experience in Maryland, the guidelines were first developed, with staff assistance, by a Board of judges, legislators and other representatives of the Criminal Justice System.

The chief goals of sentencing guidelines are:

- To increase equity in sentencing, i.e., to reduce unwarranted variation while retaining judicial discretion to individualize sentences;
- To articulate an explicit sentencing policy while providing a regular basis for policy review and change;
- 3. To provide information for part or rotating judges; and
- To promote increased visibility and understanding of the sentencing process.

Sentencing guidelines make it possible to take into account systematically and publicly the most common variations in offenders and their offenses, within the current sentencing framework. Systematic sentencing can be achieved by having the judiciary, as a body, agree on certain core factors and their weights, to be considered in making sentencing decisions. It should be emphasized that sentencing guidelines are, as the name indicates, guidelines to assist judges in sentencing. They are not mandatory. Guidelines complement rather than replace the judicial decision-making process or the proper exercise of judicial discretion.

## TABLE OF CONTENTS

PREFACE	Page
LIST OF TABLES	v
PART 1 GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS	1
1.1 Guidelines Offenses	1
1.2 Guidelines Worksheet	2
1.3 Guidelines Sentence	2
1.4 Sentences Outside Guidelines	4
1.5 Guidelines Worksheet Distribution	4
PART 2 USING THE GUIDELINES WORKSHEET	6
2.1 Case Information	6
2.2 Guidelines Scoring	8
2.2.1 Computation of the Offense Score	8
A. Seriousness Category of Convicted Offenses.	9
B. Victim Injury	10
C. Weapon Usage	10
D. Special Vulnerability of Victim	10
2.2.2 Computation of the Offender Score	11
A. Relationship to CJS when Instant	12.12
Offense Occurred	11
B. Juvenile Delinquency	12
C. Prior Adult Criminal Record	12
D. Prior Adult Parole/Probation Violations	12
2.3 Determining the Guidelines Sentence	13
2.3.1 Actual Sentence	14
2.3.2 Person Offenses	14
2.3.3 Drug Offenses	15
2.3.4 Property Offenses	15
2.3.5 Multiple Offenses	16
2.3.5.1 Scoring Single Criminal Events - Not	
More Than One Offense from	
Seriousness Category I or II	16
2.3.5.2 Scoring Single Criminal Events - Two	
or More Offense from Seriousness	4.62
Category I or II	17
2.3.5.3 Scoring Multiple Criminal Events - One	
Offense in Each Event	18
2.3.5.4 Scoring Multiple Criminal Events - More	10
Than One Offense in One or More Events	19
2.3.6 Presentence Detention	20
2.3.7 Mandatory Sentences	20
2.3.8 Subsequent Offenses 2.3.9 "White Collar" Offenses	20 21
2.3.7 WILLE OULTAL ULIEIISES	21

# Keep

# TABLE OF CONTENTS (Continued)

.

APPENDIX A.		A-1
APPENDIX B.	Criteria for Classification of Prior Criminal Adult Record	B-1
	Table B.2 Maryland Sentencing Guidelines	B-3
		B-4 B-5
APPENDIX C.	Guidelines Sentence Ranges	C-1
	Table C.la Sentencing Matrix for Offenses Against a Person	C-1
	Table C.lb Sentencing Guidelines for Offenses Against a Person	C-3
	Table C.2a Sentencing Matrix for Drug	0-5
	Offenses	C-5
	Table C.2b Sentencing Guidelines for Drug Offenses	C-7
	Table C.3a Sentencing Matrix for Property	0-7
	0	C-9
	Table C.3b Sentencing Guidelines for	
	Property Offenses C	-11
APPENDIX D.	Jurisdiction Codes	D-1
APPENDIX E.	Guidelines Sample Cases	E-1
	Case 1 Offense Against a Person - Single Convicted Offense	E-3
	Case 2 Drug Offense -	
	Single Convicted Offense Case 3 Property Offense -	E-7
	Single Convicted Offense E	2-10
	Case 4 Multiple Offenses -	
	Single Criminal Event E	2-14
	Case 5 Offenses Against a Person - Multiple Offenses from Categories I and II - Single Criminal Event E	2-20
	Case 6 Multiple Offenses -	
	Multiple Criminal Events E	2-29
	Case 7 Multiple Offenses from Single and	25
	Multiple Criminal Events E Case 8 Mandatory Minimum Sentence E	
INDEX		I-1

# LIST OF TABLES

Giminate

## Table

()

## Page

1	Sentencing Guidelines Worksheet	3
2	Case Information	6
3	Offense Score	9
4	Offender Score	11
5	Guidelines Range	!3
6	Actual Sentence	14
7	Scoring Single Criminal Events - Not More Than One Offense from Seriousness Category I or II	16
8	Scoring Single Criminal Events - Two or More Offenses from Seriousness Category I or II	17
9	Scoring Multiple Criminal Events - One Offense in Each Event	18
10	Scoring Multiple Criminal Events - More than One Offense in One or More Events	19

٠

#### PART 1

#### GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS

#### 1.1 GUIDELINES OFFENSES

Person Offenses (Sample Case 1, p. E-3)

Drug Offenses (Sample Case 2, p. E-7)

Property Offenses (Sample Case 3, p. E-10)

Offenses listed in Appendix A

Exclusions

Offenses covered by the guidelines are those initiated in a circuit court. They are divided in't three categories: person, drug and property. An offense against a person is defined as an offense involving confrontation between the offender and the victim, with bodily harm or the threat of bodily harm. Also included in this category are all weapons offenses. Drug offenses are those involving controlled dangerous substances or related paraphernalia. Property offenses are offenses where property is unlawfully damaged or taken.

A list of many Maryland offenses appears in Appendix A. Any misdemeanor which carries a possible penalty of incarceration and is not listed should be assigned to Seriousness Category VII. If a felony is not listed, call the Sentencing Guidelines Office for assistance.

New trials ordered by appellate courts should be treated as new cases.

Certain sentencing matters handled by judges in the circuit court are excluded from guidelines coverage. The exclusions are:

- <sup>o</sup> Prayers for jury trial from District Court
- <sup>o</sup> Appeals from District Court
- <sup>o</sup> Parole or probation revocations
- Crimes which carry no possible penalty of incarceration
- <sup>o</sup> First Degree Murder convictions pursuant to Article 27/413 (death penalty)<sup>1</sup>
- <sup>o</sup> Public local laws and municipal ordinances

<sup>1</sup>Unless Article 27/413 is invoked, the guidelines sentence for First Degree Murder is life.

#### 1.2 GUIDELINES WORKSHEET

The Sentencing Guidelines Worksheet is to be used for up to three convicted offenses from a single criminal event. (A single criminal event is defined as one or more crimes committed in the course of the same transaction.) If there are more than three convicted offenses from a single criminal event, additional worksheets are to be used as needed for that event.

When two or more convictions result from criminal behavior over a period of time, each conviction is considered a separate event. At least one worksheet must be used for each. <u>Please</u> do not compile multiple events on a single worksheet.

Prior to any sentencing decision using the guidelines, a worksheet or worksheets should be completed, down to the section labeled "Actual Sentence." Each convicted offense for which the offender is to be sentenced should be included. The worksheet, a copy of which appears on page 3, is printed on six-part pressure-sensitive paper, so care must be used to make sure that all copies are legible.

If the judge orders a presentence investigation, each worksheet will be filled out by the Division of Parole and Probation. If the judge does not order a presentence investigation, he or she can complete the worksheet personally or delegate the task to opposing counsel or one of the judge's staff. Regardless of who completes a worksheet, it is the responsibility of the judge to review the worksheets for completeness and accuracy.

A copy of each completed worksheet should be forwarded to both the defense attorney and the prosecutor so that they will have an opportunity to review the information provided. Any disagreements they may have should be brought to the judge's attention prior to sentencing. <u>Changes in the</u> worksheet may be made only by or with the approval of the sentencing judge.

#### 1.3 GUIDELINES SENTENCE

The guidelines sentence, based on the type of offense and type of offender, is given as a range.

One Criminal Event, up to three Offenses per Worksheet

Criminal Behavior over a Period of Time

Worksheets Completed by

Presentencing Distribution of Worksheets

Additions or Corrections to Worksheets

MAR		ENTENC			ME (Last,			First,	dle)	Ma		Black	White 2	Hispanic 3	Other 4	BIRTHDATE	1	H	URISDICTION
GUID		WORKSH	1.1		DATE OF SENTEN	CINC						<u> </u>	2	,	1				
	2 No		15E	CRIMINAL	WORKSHEE CRIMINAL E	1 T#	OF	1. Plea agreement	- state nature o		OSITION T	TYPE				a, no agreemer rt trial r trial	ıt		E ONLY. DO NOT
0	TED OFF	ENSE TITL	E						AOC CODE	MD. CODE, ART.	& SECTION	STAT. M	AX.		DOCKE	TNUMBER		ACT	
1st 2nd																		STA	CON
									IT I									FI	
3rd																		REST	-
OFFEN	ISE SCO	RE(S) (Of	fense	e Against a Pe	erson Only)	0	FFENDE	R SCORE	GUIDELINES	ACTUAL SEN	TENCE		-	imposed, s	uspended,	time served, pro	bation,	01	
1st Off	2nd Off	3rd Off	4	A. Seriousness (	Category	A. Relat	ionship t	o CJS When Occurred	RANGE 1st Offense	1st Convicted	10.000	-		ibsequent o		munity service 1 Yes	2 No	02	
01 03	01 03	01 03		V - VII IV				Pending Cases			Ononao			ibsodaom (		1100	12.110	USE	
05	05	05				1 :		or Other Criminal Supervision	2nd Offense	-								SUS	
80	80	08		11		B. Juven	and the second data in the second data with the second data with the second data with the second data with the	and share the same of the local data where the same of the same	TO	1								ACT	
10	10	10	= B	. Victim Injury		F		Than One Delinquency 19 25		2nd Convicte	d Offense		l e.	ubsequent	offender	1 Yes	2.12	CON	PRO
0	0	0	=	No Injury		1 = T	wo or Mo	ore Findings, No	3rd Offense		u onense	,	31	unzedneur		1 785	2 No	1	
1	1	1	=	Injury, Non-Pe		107	ever hour and	mmitment	TO	]								REST	
2	2	2	=	Permanent Inju Weapon Usage				ore Commitments Iminal Record										CS	
0	0	0	=	No Weapon			None	1 = Minor	OVERALL									-	
1	1	1	=	Weapon Other	Than Firearm	5 =	Major	3 = Moderate	GUIDELINES RANGE	2rd Convictor	Offense		İc					SUS	
2	2	2	=	Firearm or Exp	the second of the second se		Colora Marcola	role/Probation	(For Multiple Counts Only)	Compared the date of the second second	1 01101150		20	ubsequent of	omender	1 Yes	2 No	-	
0	0	0		No	bility of Victim	D. Prior Viola		role/Probation	Counte Chilip	-								CON_	_ PRO
1	1	1		Yes		0 =	No	1 = Yes	то									FI	Annual Annual Annual Annual Annual
·			_ ٦	105		lr	1											REST	-
	ii		0	FFENSE SCOR	E (S)		OFFER	IDER SCORE										CS	
DEAC		TUAL CE	NTC	NCE DEPART	E EDOM OU	DELINIE	DANO	r		INSTITUTION	ALIPARC	DLE RE	COMI	MENDA	TION/A	DDITIONAL	INFO.	TURAN	
READ	JN IF AC	IUAL SE	NIE	NCE DEPARTS	S PROM GUI	DELINE	MANG	E										1	
										1									
																		TOTALS	
										1								TOTALN	
																		TF1	
																		REST	-
																		TCS	
																		TOUT1	And the second second
-																		TOUT2	
		SENTENCI	AC 100	DGE			SIGNATU	RE		WORKSHEET CON	PLETED BY						TITLE	TUSE	

CN

Non-suspended Incarceration The guidelines sentence range represents only nonsuspended time. If the guidelines range for a particular case is 6 to 12 years, the judge will be within the guidelines if he gives a sentence such as 10 years with 4 years suspended or 15 years with 5 years suspended. If, however, he gives 6 years, all suspended, the sentence will be outside the guidelines.

If an offender is already under sentence, time remaining to be served should be indicated on the worksheet with the rest of the sentencing This remaining time will be counted information. determining whether the new sentence or in sentences are within the guidelines. If the guidelines range is 2 to 5 years and the offender has served 1 year of a previous 3 year sentence, he would have to receive at least two years of additional unsuspended time to be sentenced within guidelines. Among sentences that would be within the guidelines in this example are 4 years concurrent, 2 years consecutive or 8 years concurrent with 4 years suspended.

Probation

Within statutory limits, the length of any probation imposed is left to the discretion of the judge.

#### 1.4 SENTENCES OUTSIDE THE GUIDELINES

Whenever a sentence outside the recommended guidelines range is imposed, the judge should give written reasons on the guidelines worksheet. Reasons for departing from guidelines should indicate specifically why the sentence actually imposed is more appropriate, reasonable, or equitable than a sentence within the guidelines. These reasons may be brief but should be substantive. Although the guidelines are advisory to the sentencing judge, it is expected that he or she will deviate from the guidelines only when circumstances are compelling.

#### 1.5 GUIDELINES WORKSHEET DISTRIBUTION

Copies of each guidelines worksheet should be distributed as follows:

White		Sentencing Judge
Blue	-	Administrative Office of the
		Courts (Maryland Sentencing
		Guidelines)

Written Reasons for Departure from Guidelines

Distribution of Color-coded Worksheets

Green	(a) Attached to commitment order
	if defendant receives any period
	of incarceration; or
	(b) Attached to probation order
	if defendant is put on probation
	immediately; and
	(c) If the case is a split
	sentence, the preparer is to
	send a photocopy to the Division
	of Parole and Probation.
Yellow	- Court File
Pink	- State's Attorney
Gold	- Defense Attorney

The sentencing judge and opposing counsel should have received or completed their copies of the worksheets prior to sentencing. When a presentence investigator fills in a worksheet, he should send the judge the first four copies, together with the presentence investigation (PSI) and the Maryland Sentencing Guidelines Criteria for Prior Record. If no PSI is ordered, the judge will have decided who is to complete the forms.

At sentencing, the actual sentence and any changes on the worksheet should be entered by the judge and recorded by the two attorneys on their copies.

After sentencing, the judge distributes the blue, green and yellow copies to the indicated recipients according to individual court practice. The Maryland Sentencing Guidelines Criteria for Prior Record form should accompany the blue worksheet sent to the Administrative Office of the Courts. In split sentence cases, the court should make a copy of the worksheet for the appropriate probation office. An institution receiving a prisoner eligible for parole will duplicate its worksheet copy for the Parole Commission.

#### PART 2

#### USING THE GUIDELINES WORKSHEET

#### 2.1 CASE INFORMATION

The top section of the worksheet, as shown in Table 2, contains space for information important for purposes of both case identification and analysis. The items requested are the offender's name, sex, ethnicity, birthdate, jurisdiction where the case was tried, whether or not a PSI was available, dates of offense and sentencing, number of convicted offenses and criminal events at the sentencing being reported, the number of the worksheet and criminal event, the title of the instant offense with its Maryland Code article and section number statutory maximum, and the case or docket number.

Appendix D contains a numeric code for each jurisdiction in the State. The code for the jurisdiction in which the defendant was tried should be used.

> TABLE 2 CASE INFORMATION

MARYLAND SENTENCING GUIDELINES WORKSHEET	OFTENDER NAME (Lost.	THU.	M-ddle)		Mate 1	2	Bleck 1	2	Hispania 3	Other 4	(Balt	THOAT	TE I	1	I.	AURISONCTION
PEI DATE OF OFFENSE 1 Yes 2 Ho 1 1 AT THE CONVECTED REALTERCING OFFENSE HUMBER OF: 1	DATE OF SEATENCING	1. Ploa agreement	- state nature c		каровл	NON T	YPE				rt trial		ment		T	
CONVICTED OFFENSE TITLE			AOC CODE	NO. CODE, A	AT. & SEC	TION	STAT M	XA.		DOCKE	TNUM	BEA	_	_	1	
2nd	Marine and the second				1	-		+								
3rd																

Convicted Offenses In the space for the number of convicted offenses at this sentencing write the total number of offenses for which one judge must impose a specific sentence at one time and place. Merged offenses are not to be used in the calculations of guidelines. That is, those offenses considered as merged are not to be placed on the worksheet or considered in any of the worksheet computations.

Numbering of Worksheets In the space for the number of criminal events at this sentencing, write the total number of criminal events being sentenced at this time. As

(Rev. 7/87)

6

MP

General Information

MIC

defined earlier, a single criminal event is one or more offenses committed in the course of the same transaction. Multiple criminal events being sentenced together may have occurred on the same or different dates. Offenses which occur on different dates are almost always separate criminal events.

The block for the worksheet number and criminal event number is intended to provide information as to the total number of convicted offenses at a sentencing event. For sentencings involving more than one criminal event, this block should also reflect the chronological order in which the events occurred and which offenses were part of which event.

When the offense is a single conviction, a score of one is to be placed as the number of convicted offenses and the number of convicted events (See sample case 1, p. E-3). This section is located in the upper left hand corner of the worksheet.

For <u>multiple convicted offenses</u> the number of convicted offenses entered on the worksheet is the total number being sentenced at this sentencing event. (See sample cases 4 thru 8, pages E-11-E-35.)

For <u>multiple offenses from more than one</u> criminal event, the number of criminal events is numbered chronologically by date of offense. (See sample case 6, page E-29.)

Spaces are provided on each worksheet for listing up to three convicted offense titles for a single criminal event (whether the same or different docket numbers). Convicted offense titles and their corresponding Maryland code references may be abbreviated but should be as For example, the offense specific as possible. title for a drug violation (even if it is a conspiracy or attempt) should include the name of the drug and whether possession, distribution, etc. was involved. Property offenses should include any relevant dollar categories, such as "Theft Under \$300" or "Extortion \$300 or More".

Spaces are provided at the bottom of the worksheet for the signature of the sentencing judge and the person completing the worksheet.

Convicted Offense Title(s)

The Sentencing Judge Should Indicate Disposition Type

Plea Agreement

Plea, No Agreement

Court Trial

Jury Trial

Offense Score for Offenses Against Persons Only (Sample Case 1, p. E-3) The disposition type refers to the nature and circumstances of the conviction and sentencing. Since the probation agent frequently lacks this information, the sentencing judge should make sure it is included. The disposition box, shown in Table 2, should be marked according to the conditions described there.

If the disposition resulted from plea negotiations, circle "1" and provide a brief description. Examples are: lesser charge, reduced number of charges, binding plea agreement as to actual sentence, binding plea agreement as to sentence maximum or range, State recommendation as to sentence, and agreed statement of facts.

If the defendant pled guilty without any agreement from the prosecutor or judge to perform in a particular way, circle "2".

If the disposition resulted from a court trial, circle "3".

If the disposition followed a trial by jury, circle "4".

#### 2.2 GUIDELINES SCORING

For offenses against persons, an offense score and an offender score must be computed for each offense to be sentenced. Since there are no special offense characteristics to be used in determining the guidelines sentence for drug and property offenses, only an offender score needs to be computed for them.

#### 2.2.1 Computation of the Offense Score

The offense score for each convicted offense is derived by totaling the points given for certain factors of that offense. Items may be included if known to the judge even if not within the scope of the convicted offense, <u>e.g.</u>, weapon usage in a robbery conviction or victim injury in a handgun violation conviction.

A firearm offense is considered a person offense under guidelines.

The four elements of the offense score appear in Table 3 below. A column of offense scores is provided on the worksheet for each of three

#### TABLE 3

#### OFFENSE SCORE

			7	Yes
1	1	1	-	1.2.5
0		0	C	<ol> <li>Special Vulnerability of Victim No</li> </ol>
2	2	2	=	Firearm or Explosive
1	1	1	-	Weapon Other Than Firearm
0	0	0	-	No Weapon
			0	2. Weapon Usage
2	2	2	-	Permanent Injury or Death
1	1	1	=	Injury, Non-Permanent
0	0	0	m	No Injury
			E	3. Victim Injury
10	10	10	=	1
08	08	08	=	П
05	05	05	-	ш
03	03	03	22	IV
01	01	01		V - VII
1at Off	2nd Off	3rd Off		A. Seriousness Category

Following are a description and an interpretation of the scoring for each offense factor.

#### A. Seriousness Category of the Convicted Offense

Points are given on the basis of the seriousness category of the convicted offense. In Appendix A, Maryland criminal offenses are listed alphabetically with Seriousness Categories.

A conspiracy, attempt or solicitation should be considered in the same seriousness category as the substantive offense unless placed in a different category in Appendix A or specifically addressed by separate statute (e.g., Attempted Arson, Article 27/10). Accessory before or after the fact is considered to be one seriousness category below the substantive offense. Worksheets submitted for conspiracy, attempt. solicitation or accessory should specify the substantive illegal activity involved.

Seriousness Category

Conspiracies, Attempts and Solicitations

Accessory Before or After the Fact

(Rev. 7/87)

9

#### B. Victim Injury

<u>Victim injury may be physical or mental</u>. The latter must be based on confirmed medical diagnosis or psychological treatment. For guidelines purposes, mental injury is always to be considered non-permanent.

In a multiple offense case, injury points are given only for the offense or offenses where a victim was injured.

apon age

.ctim

ijury

#### C. Weapon Usage

A weapon is any article or device which reasonably appears capable of causing injury or any article that could result in conviction under the concealed weapons statute.

plosives Explosives are to be considered the same as firearms.

2, Gun, weapons other than firearms include incendiaries, knives, tire irons and clubs. CO<sub>2</sub> guns (including pellet stols guns), and starter pistols are also scored as weapons other than firearms and receive one point.

y Gun\* Ordinarily, a toy gun is not considered a weapon, Brooks V. State No. 60 (1988), and should be scored as zero. The only exception would be if the instrument was capable of being used as a bludgeon.

> Not included among weapons are automobiles, unless deliberately used as weapons; or parts of the body, <u>e.g.</u>, hands or feet, unless the offender is a professional in some form of self-defense.

signed If a weapon was feigned but no weapon was actually sapon present, the score would be "O" (no weapon used).

Any applicable guidelines points for weapon usage ter the should be given to an accessory before the fact but not to an accessory after the fact.

specially

Inerable.ctim

D. Special Vulnerability of Victim

This item is designed to cover cases in which the relative helplessness of the victim tends to render the actions of the perpetrator all the more brutal or sadistic. An especially vulnerable victim is anyone 10 years of age or less, 60 years of age or more, or physically or mentally handicapped. The handicap may be temporary or permanent. Total Offense Score To obtain an offense score, add the circled points in A, B, C and D for each person offense of which the defendant was convicted. The maximum offense score is 15; the minimum is 1.

#### 2.2.2 Computation of the Offender Score

Offender's Criminal History The offender score is derived by totaling the points represented by the offender's prior criminal history. The factors comprising this history are shown in Table 4 below.

#### TABLE 4

#### OFFENDER SCORE

OFFENDER	R SCORE
A. Relationship to Instant Count	
0 = None or	Pending Cases
	r Other Criminal Supervision
B. Juvenile Delino	quency
0 = Not More Finding of or over ag	Delinquency
1 = Two or Mo or One Co	ere Findings, No mmitment
2 = Two or Mo	ore Commitments
C. Prior Adult Cri	iminal Record
0 = None	1 = Minor
5 = Major	3 = Moderate
D. Prior Adult Pa Violations	role/Probation
0 = No	1 = Yes
in the second second	DER SCORE

Following are a description and interpretation of the scoring for each offender factor. Any prior criminal activity which the defendant admits should be included. Variables A, C and D refer only to the defendant's adult involvement with the criminal justice system.

A. Relationship to CJS When Instant Offense Occurred

If the offender was in the criminal justice system as the result of an adjudication of guilt as an adult, this factor should be scored as "1". The

Offender under Criminal Justice Supervision

defendant may have been on parole, probation, incarcerated, on work release, etc., at the time the offense was committed.

#### B. Juvenile Delinquency

Findings of delinquency are counted the same as convictions would be for an adult; that is, there may be more than one as part of a single event. Commitments refer o the court's assignment of a juvenile to a correctional facility, large or small. Suspended juvenile commitments should be counted as findings of delinquency.

An incarcerable traffic offense in which the court finds a juvenile involved should be treated as part of his or her juvenile record.

If the offender was 26 or older at the time of the instant offense, any juvenile record should be excluded from consideration. An offender who had reached his 26th birthday by the date of the offense will be scored "O" whether or not he had a juvenile record.

#### C. Prior Adult Criminal Record

When determining the defendant's prior criminal adult record, Appendix B is to be used. Appendix B presents severity score criteria to calculate the adult criminal record. The Appendix provides those instructions necessary to calculate the prior adult criminal record score. If the defendant has no prior adult criminal record then a score of zero (0) is the appropriate response. However, if the defendant has a minor adult criminal record one point is issued, moderate criminal record, three points; and major criminal record, five points.

#### D. Prior Adult Parole/Probation Violations

Score "O" if offender has never before been on adult parole or probation or has successfully completed previous periods of supervision as an adult. Score one point if offender was ever adjudicated in violation of parole or probation or was convicted of an offense while on parole or probation, unless the adjudication or conviction arose from the offense or offenses of this sentencing event. Do not give a point simply

Juvenile Record

Age for Considering Juvenile Record

Adult Criminal Record

Parole or Probation Violations

because offender was on parole or probation at the time of the instant offense; he will already have been penalized in "A" for being under supervision when he committed this offense.

To obtain the total offender score, add the circled points in A, B, C and D. The maximum offender score is "9"; the minimum is "0".

#### 2.3 DETERMINING THE GUIDELINES SENTENCE

After the offense and offender scores have been calculated for each offense for which there is a conviction or other adjudication of guilt, use the appropriate matrix - person, drug, or property - to determine the guidelines range. (See Table 5.) In multiple offense cases, the overall guidelines range is determined after calculating guidelines for the individual offenses (See pages 15-20.) A sentence within the guidelines is a sentence where the net unsuspended incarceration after the expiration of any previously imposed incarceration is within the guidelines.

#### TABLE 5

#### GUIDELINES RANGE

RAN	INES GE
1st Off	ense
	TO
2nd Of	tense
-	TO
3rd Of	leuse
	TO
	-
OVE	
	LINES
	lultiple
Count	s Only)

Total Offense Score

Guidelines Range

#### 2.3.1 Actual Sentence

Judge Enters Actual Sentences At the time of sentencing, the actual sentence is entered on the worksheet by the sentencing judge. Complete sentencing information for each convicted offense includes: credit for time served, suspended time, length of probation, fine, restitution<sup>1</sup>, and community service. (See Table 6)

#### TABLE 6

#### ACTUAL SENTENCE

ACTUAL SENTENCE fine, rest	itution, and/or community servic
1st Convicted Offense	Subsequent Offender 1 Yes 2 No
2nd Convicted Offense	Subsequent Offender 1 Yes 2 No
3rd Convicted Offense	Subsequent Offender 1 Yes 2 No

A judge, who reconsiders his sentence within 90 days, should notify the sentencing guidelines office as to any change. Only the offender's name and docket number need to be given with the new sentence.

#### 2.3.2 Person Offenses

To find the guidelines sentence for an offense against a person, refer to Appendix Table C.1a, page <u>C-1, or C.1b, page C-3.</u> In Appendix C.1a, the guideline ranges are in a grid format with the offense score on the vertical axis and the offender score on the horizontal axis. The guidelines range for any given convicted offense is in the block where the two scores intersect.

A Person (Sample Case 1, P. E-3)

Offense Against

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> On May 26, 1988 the Maryland Sentencing Guidelines Advisory Board unanimously agreed that restitution should be included as a part of the Sentencing Guidelines, and that restitution should be ordered in all cases where appropriate. Article 27, Section 640 of the Annotated Code of Maryland allows the court to order the defendant, as a sentence or condition of probation or parole, to make restitution upon conviction of a crime. Restitution can be ordered for any property losses or medical expenses incurred by the victim of the crime. Furthermore, a third party payor, including an insurer that has made payment to the victim, may also be entitled to restitution.

Appendix Table C.lb is an alternative presentation. The various combinations of offense and offender scores with their respective guidelines ranges are listed for any who finds that format preferable.

As was previously stated, the person offense sentencing matrix is not necessary for First Degree Murder. The guidelines sentence for First Degree Murder (unless the offender is being sentenced pursuant to Article 27/413) is life.

#### 2.3.3 Drug Offenses

To find the guidelines sentence for a drug offense, refer to Appendix Table C.2a, page C-5, or C.2b, page C-7. In Appendix Table C.2a, the guidelines range for a particular instant offense is in the block opposite the seriousness category for that offense and under the applicable offender score.

Appendix Table C.2b lists each drug seriousness category opposite the offender scores and guidelines ranges for each. When using this table, match the seriousness category of the convicted offense to the offender score to find the guidelines sentence. Possession with Intent to Distribute is considered an offense under 27/286 rather than 27/287.

The sale or possession of an unusally large amount of drugs or evidence that the offender is an upper echelon dealer are aggravating factors that should be considered as reasons for sentencing above the guidelines.

2.3.4 Property Offenses

To find the guidelines sentence for a property offense, refer to either Appendix Table C.3a, page C-9, or C.3b, page C-11.

In Appendix Table C.3a, the guidelines range for a particular offense is in the block opposite the seriousness category for that offense and under the applicable offender score.

Appendix Table C.3b lists the guidelines ranges by seriousness category and offender score. To use this table, match the instant offense seriousness category and the offender score to find

First Degree Murder

Drug Offenses (Sample Case 2, p. E-7)

Property Offenses (Sample Case 3, p. E-10)

the guidelines sentence range.

Single Criminal Event, Not More Than One Seriousness Category I or II Offense

#### 2.3.5 Multiple Offenses

2.3.5.1 Scoring Single Criminal Events - Not More Than One Offense from Seriousness Category I or II (See Table 7)

1. Calculate the guidelines range for each offense.

2. Determine the overall guidelines range by identifying the highest of the lower guidelines limit and the highest of the upper guidelines limit. Usually these will be the lower and upper limits of the guidelines range for one of the offenses, but there are infrequent exceptions. (See Example 3 in Table 7.)

'I' A	121	E.	7	
TA	DI	11	1	

	Exampl	Le 1	
Criminal	Offense	Seriousness	Guidelines
Event		Category	Range
1	Second Degree Rape	a II	12-25 Yrs.
1	Handgun Violation	III	5*-8 Yrs.
	Overall guidelines Example		12-25 Yrs.
Criminal	Offense	Seriousness	Guidelines
Event		Category	Range
1	Burglary		1-4 Yrs.
1	Theft \$300 or More		1-3 Yrs.
1	Destroying Propert		6M-1 Yr.
	Overall guidelines Example		1-4 Yrs.
Criminal	Offense	Seriousness	Guidelines
Event		Category	Range
1	Assault	V	1-5 Yrs.
1	Distribution of L	SD IV	2-3 Yrs.
	Overall guidelin	nes range	2-5 Yrs.
	delines range was Minimum is 5 Years	3-8 years bu	t statutory

2v. 7/87)

3. Any combinations of sentences imposed, concurrent or consecutive, are within the guidelines when the net time to be served (i.e., the initial sentence minus suspended sentence) falls within the overall guideline range.

#### 2.3.5.2 Scoring Single Criminal Events - Two or More Offenses from Seriousness Category I or II (See Table 8)

1. Calculate the guidelines range for each offense.

2. Determine the overall guidelines range by adding the guidelines ranges for each offense in Seriousness Category I or II.

			Examp	le l			
Crimina	11		S	eriou	sness	Guidel	ines
Event		Offense	2	Cate	egory	Ran	ge
1	Fir	st Degree	Rape		I	15-25	Yrs.
1 1	Kid	napping			II	7-13	Yrs.
1	Rob	bery		1	IV	2- 7	Yrs.
		Overall	guide	line	s range	22-38	Yrs.
š			Examp	le 2			
Crimina	11		Se	rious	sness	Guidel:	ines
Event		Offense		Cate	gory	Rang	ge
1	lst	Degree Sez	c Offe	ense	I	30Y-L:	ife
1 1	lst	Degree Ser	c Offe	nse	I	30Y-L:	ife
1	lst	Degree Rap	pe		I	30Y-L	ife
		Overall gu	iideli	nes :	range	90Y(L:	ife
						+30 Yr:	s.)*
						to 3 co	onsc
						Life to	erms
,		vears is c entence to					one

TABLE 8

3. Any combinations of sentences imposed, concurrent or consecutive, are within the guidelines when the net time to be served (i.e.,

Single Criminal Event, Two or More Seriousness Category I or II Offenses (Sample Case 5, p. E-20)

the initial sentence minus suspended sentence) falls within the overall guideline range.

Multiple Criminal Events, One Offense in Each Event

#### 2.3.5.3 Scoring Multiple Criminal Events - One Offense in Each Event (See Table 9)

1. Arrange the offenses in chronological order beginning with the one committed first.

2. Calculate the guideline range for each event's convicted counts. The prior criminal adult record is constant throughout each event. A prior adult criminal record score reflects the defendant's criminal history on the date of sentencing. The prior adult criminal record calculated for the first event is the same for all proceeding events, as long as they are being sentenced at the same time.

3. Determine the overall guidelines range by adding the congets for each event.

	Ex	ample 1	
Criminal Event	Offense	Seriousness Category	Guidelines Range
1	RDW	III	3-8 Yrs.
2	RDW	III	3-8 Yrs.
3	. RDW	III	3-8 Yrs.
	Overall	guidelines range	9-24 Yrs.
		Example 2	
Criminal		Seriousness	Guidelines
Event	Offense	Category	Range
1	Burglary	IV	10-20 Yrs
1 2	Forgery	v	*8-10 Yrs
	Overall	guidelines range	18-30 Yrs
	*Statutor	y Maximum is 10	Years

TABLE 9

4. Any combinations of sentences imposed, concurrent or consecutive, are within the guidelines when the net time to be served (i.e., the initial sentence minus suspended sentence) falls within the overall guideline range. Multiple Criminal Events, More Than One Offense in at Least One Event

#### 2.3.5.4 Scoring Multiple - Criminal Events More than One Offense in One or More Events (See Table 10)

1. Arrange the events in chronological order, beginning with the offense or offenses committed in the first event.

TABLE 10

	Exampl	le l	and and the second s
Criminal		Seriousness	
Event	Offense	Category	Range
1	RDW	III	6-12 Yrs.
1	Handgun Violati	Lon III	6-12 Yrs.
2	RDW	III	6-12 Yrs.
2	Poss. of Mariju	ana VII	P-1 Mo.
	Overall guideli	lnes range	12-24 Yrs.
	Exampl	e 2	
Criminal		Seriousness	Guidelines
Event	Offense	Category	Range
1	Sthse-breaking	v	P-6 Mos.
2 2 2	Sthse-breaking	V	P-6 Mos.
2	Theft \$300 or Mo	ore V	P-6 Mos.
2	Assault	v	P
0	verall guidelines	range	P-lYr.
	Exampl	Le 3	
Criminal		Seriousness	Guidelines
Event	Offense	Category	Range
1	lst Degree Rape	I	10-18 Yrs.
1	Robbery	IV	P- 2 Yrs.
2	Burglary	IV	P- 1 Yr.
	Overall guidelin	les range	10-19 Yrs.

2. Calculate the guidelines range for each offense in the first event.

3. Determine the overall guidelines range for the first criminal event as in 2.3.5.1 or 2.3.5.2, but do not enter it on a worksheet. 4. Follow steps two and three for each succeeding criminal event. The prior criminal adult record is constant throughout each event. A prior adult criminal record score reflects the defendant's criminal history on the date of sentencing. The prior adult criminal record calculated for the first event is the same for all proceeding events, as long as they are being sentenced at the same time.

5. After determining the overall guidelines range for each criminal event, the ranges are added to determine the overall guidelines range for the entire case.

6. Any combinations of sentences imposed, concurrent or consecutive, are within the guidelines when the net time to be served (i.e., the initial sentence minus suspended sentence) falls within the overall guideline range.

#### 2.3.6 Presentence Detention

When a defendant has been incarcerated prior to sentencing, this detention should be indicated under "Actual Sentence" by the judge. Either the number of days credit for time served or the date from which the sentence is to run should be given.

#### 2.3.7 Mandatory Sentences

	If	th	e gu	idel	in	es se	nt	enc	e r	ang	ge (	exce	ed	S	the
statu	itor	У	max	imum		for	a	g	iver	1	off	fens	e,		the
statu	itor	У	maxi	mum	be	comes	t	he	upp	er	11	mit	0	f	the
guide	lin	es	rang	ge.	If	the	gu:	Lde.	line	s	sen	tend	e	ra	nge
is t	pelo	W	the	man	dat	tory	st	atu	tor	у	min	imur	n,	t	hat
minir	num	be	come	s th	e	lower	1	imi	t o	f	the	gui	Lde	11	nes
range	2.														

#### 2.3.8 Subsequent Offenses

Enhanced punishment legislation for subsequent offenders also takes precedence over guidelines ranges if not otherwise provided for in this Manual. When the statutory penalty for a drug offense is doubled under Article 27, Section 293, the guidelines range for that offense is also doubled. The guidelines sentence is determined by doubling the appropriate sentence from the drug offense sentencing matrix except when the mandatory minimum sentence under 27/286 is invoked and takes precedence.

Credit for Time Served

Statutory Maximums and Minimums (Sample Case 8, p. E-43)

Second or Subsequent Offenses "White Collar" Crimes If sentencing is pursuant to an enhanced punishment statute, mark the box provided on the worksheet and specify the statute.

#### 2.3.9 "White Collar" Offenses

The guidelines apply to white collar offenses. However, it is pointed out and emphasized that the presence of a white collar offense should be viewed as an aggravating factor which may lead the sentencing judge to exceed the applicable guidelines. A white collar offense is defined as follows:

The offense was a major economic offense, identified as an illegal act or series of illegal acts committed by other than physical means and by concealment or guile to obtain money or property, to avoid payment or loss of money or property, or to obtain business or professional advantage.

# **APPENDIX A**

# SENTENCING GUIDELINES OFFENSES

1

OFFENSE LITERAL 5	SERIOUSNESS CATEGORY	SOURCE	MAXIMUM TERM	MINIMUM TERM	OFFENSE TYPE
Abduction					
Child under sixteen for immoral pi poses	ur- III	27, § 1	8Y		Person
Child under twelve	III	27, § 2	20Y		Person
Child under twelve by relative in state	VII	FL § 9-304	30D		Person
Child under twelve by relative outs state 30 days or less	ide VII	FL § 9-305	30D		Person
Child under twelve by relative outs state more than 30 days	ide VII	FL § 9-305	1Y		Person
Arson					
Burning personal property of anoth less than \$1,000 (malicious burning 2 degree)		27, § 8(a)(1),(2)	18M		Property
Burning personal property of anoth \$1,000 or more (malicious burning the degree)		27, § 8(a)(1),(3)	5Y		Property
Burning property with intent to defrau	id VII	27, § 8(b)(1)	5Y		Property
Dwelling or occupied structure (ars 1st degree)	son III	27, § 6(a)	30Y		Property
Other structure (arson 2nd degree)	IV	27, § 7(a)	20Y		Property
Trash bin	VII	27,§9A(a)	30D		Property
Threat of	IV	27,§9(a)(1),(2)	10Y		Property
Assault					
Assault and/or battery	V	CL			Person
Assault on division of correction patuxent institution, jail or detent center inmate or employee		27, § 12A-6		consecutive no suspension	Person
Assault with deadly weapon*	V	FEDERAL OFFENSE			
Assault with intent to commit 1st deg rape***	ree III	27, § 12	15Y	2Y	Person
Assault with intent to commit 2nd gree rape***	de- III	27, § 12	15Y	2Y	Person

	ERIOUSNESS CATEGORY	SOURCE	MAXIMUM TERM	MINIMUM TERM	OFFENSE TYPE
Assault with intent to commit 1st degree sex offense***	ee III	27, § 12	15Y	2Y	Person
Assault with intent to commit 2nd de gree sex offense***	e- III	27, § 12	15Y	2Y	Person
Assault with intent to maim, disable etc.***	e, III	27, § 386	15Y		Person
Assault with intent to murder***	III	27, § 12	30Y	2Y	Person
Assault with intent to prevent lawful ap prehension***	- III	27, § 386	15Y		Person
Assault with intent to rob***	IV	27, § 12	10Y	2Y	Person
Assault, 1st degree****	II	27, § 12A-1	25Y		Person
Assault, 2nd degree****	IV	27, § 12A	10Y		Person
Bad check					
Obtaining property/services under \$300	VII	27, § 141	18M		Property
Obtaining property/services worth \$30 or more	00 V	27, § 141	15Y		Property
Breaking and entering					
Breaking into railroad car or entering b force	vy VI	27, § 115	10Y	2Y	Property
Breaking into or entering railroad car of attached freight with intent to steal	or VI	27, § 114	10Y	1Y	Property
Motor vehicle	VII	27, § 35	3Y		Property
Research facility	VI	27,§34(b)	5Y		Property
Bribery to or by public office (27,§22)	er V	CL	12Y	2Y	Property
Burglary					
1st degree	III	27, § 29(a)	20Y	·	Property
2nd degree	IV	27,§30(a)	15Y		Property
2nd degree, steal or take firearm	IV	27, § 30(b)	20Y		Property
3rd degree	IV	27,§31(a)	10Y		Propert
4th degree	VII	27,§32(a),(b),(c	) 3Y		Property

Appendix A: Maryland Sentencing Guidelines Offenses  $\bullet 2$ 

October 1, 1996

				· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
OFFENSE LITERAL	SERIOUSNESS CATEGORY	SOURCE	MAXIMUM TERM	MINIMUM TERM	OFFENSE TYPE
With explosives	III	27,§33(a)	20Y		Property
Carjacking	II	27, § 348А(b)(1),	(2) 30Y		Person
Child abuse					
Physical	IV	27, § 35С(b)(1)	15Y		Person
Sexual	IV	27, § 35C(b)(1)	15Y		Person
With death	III	27, § 35С(b)(2)	20Y		Person
Child pornography					
1st offense	V	27, § 419A	10Y		Person
Subsequent	III	27, § 419A	20Y		Person
Contempt, Criminal*	VII	CL			
Contraband					
Delivery in or out of institution to efj escape	fect VI	∠7,§122A(b)	10Y		Property
Delivery in or out of institution ot than to effect escape	her VI	27, § 122A(c)	3Y		Property
Contributing to certain contributing to certain contributions of a child	di- VII	CJP § 3-831(a)	3Y		Person
Controlled dangerous substance importation into state	e- III	27, § 286A(a)	25Y		Drug
Credit card					
\$300 or under	VII	27, § 145	18M		Property
More than \$300	V	27, § 145	15Y		Property
Crimes against religious pro erty, institutions, or person property because of race, reli ious belief	nal				
Involving misdemeanor	V	27, § 470A(b)(4)	3Y		Person
Involving separate felony generally	IV	27,§470A(b)(4)	10Y		Person
Involving separate felony resulting death	in III	27, § 470A(b)(4)	20Y		Person

CATEGORY	SOURCE	MAXIMUM TERM	MINIMUM TERM	OFFENSE TYPE
VI	27, § 59(b)(2)	3Y		Property
VI	27, § 61	3Y	1Y	Property
			-45	
VII	27, § 111(a)	60D		Property
VII	27, § 111(a)	3Y		Property
10- VI	27, § 113	10Y		Property
ice IV	27, § 286B	5Y		Drug
II	27, § 286(g)	40Y	20Y	Drug
on, III re, for ce, er-	27, § 286(b)(2)	20Y		Drug
on, III re, for ce, er-	27, § 286(c)(1)	20Y	10Y	Drug
on, IV re, for ce, g., m,	27, § 286(b)(3)	5Y		Drug
	CATEGORY VI VI VI VI VII VII VII VII VII VII VI	VI       27, § 59(b)(2)         VI       27, § 61         VII       27, § 111(a)         VII       27, § 111(a)         VII       27, § 111(a)         VI       27, § 113         ace       IV       27, § 286(B)         II       27, § 286(g)         III       27, § 286(b)(2)         re, for ce, er-       III       27, § 286(c)(1)         re, for ce, er-       III       27, § 286(c)(1)         on, re, for ce, er-       III       27, § 286(c)(1)         on, re, for ce, er-       III       27, § 286(c)(1)         on, re, for ce, er-       III       27, § 286(c)(1)         on, re, for ce, er-       IV       27, § 286(c)(1)	CATEGORY       TERM $\forall$ I       27, § 59(b)(2)       3Y $\forall$ I       27, § 61       3Y $\forall$ II       27, § 111(a)       60D $\forall$ II       27, § 111(a)       3Y $uce$ IV       27, § 286B       5Y         II       27, § 286(g)       40Y $uce$ IV       27, § 286(b)(2)       20Y $re, for ce, er-$ III       27, § 286(c)(1)       20Y $re, for ce, er-$ IV       27, § 286(c)(1)       20Y $re, for ce, er-$ IV       27, § 286(c)(1)       20Y $re, for ce, er-$ IV       27, § 286(b)(3)       5Y $re, for ce, er-$ IV       27, § 286(b)(3)       5Y	CATEGORY       TERM       TERM       TERM $VI$ 27, § 59(b)(2)       3Y       1Y $VI$ 27, § 61       3Y       1Y $VII$ 27, § 111(a)       60D       1Y $VII$ 27, § 111(a)       3Y       1Y $to VI$ 27, § 286B       5Y $to VI$ 27, § 286(g)       40Y       20Y $tree$ $IV$ 27, § 286(b)(2)       20Y       20Y $tree$ $II$ 27, § 286(b)(2)       20Y       20Y $tree$ $III$ 27, § 286(c)(1)       20Y       10Y $tree$ $III$ 27, § 286(b)(3)       5Y       10Y $tree$ $IV$ 27, § 286(b)(3)       5Y       10Y $tree$ $IV$ 27, § 286(b)(3)       5Y       10Y $tree$ $IV$ 27, § 286(b)(3)       5Y       10Y </td

OFFENSE LITERAL	CATEGORY	SOURCE	MAXIMUM TERM	MINIMUM TERM	OFFENSE TYPE
Unlawful manufacture, distribution etc.; counterfeiting, etc.; manufactur possession, etc., of certain equipment illegal use; keeping common nuisan schedule I through V non-narcotics (e. amphetamines, marijuana., diazepa and valium), subsequent	re, for ce, g.,	27, § 286(b)(3)	5Y	2Y	Drug
Using minors for manufacture, delive or distribution of controlled dangero substances.		27, § 286C	20Y		Drug
Escape					
Aiding	IV	27, § 139(c)	10Y		Person
From penitentiary, jail, reformatory, en or from alcohol and drug abuse admin stration		27, § 139(a)(1),(3)	10Y		Person
Explosives					
Destructive explosive devices	ш	27, § 139B(a)	20Y		Property
Dynamiting, etc., property	ш	27, § 119	LIFE/ 20Y		Property
Molotov cocktail	VII	27,§139A(a)	5Y		Property
Possession without a license	VI	38A, § 29	5Y		Property
Pipe Bomb	Ш	27, § 139C(a)	20Y		Property
Unlawful manufacture or dealing wi out license	th- VI	38A, § 27	5Y		Property
Extortion					
By anyone, under \$300	VII	27, § 562B	18M		Property
By anyone, \$300 or more	v	27, § 562B	10Y		Property
By false accusation	VI	27, § 563	2Y		Property
By state or local officer, \$300 or less	VII	27, § 562C	6M		Property
By state or local officer, over \$300	v	27, § 562C	10Y		Property
By state or local officer or emplo against another employee	yee VI	27, § 562D	5Y		Property
Sending, etc. a threatening letter, etc.	v	27,§561(a)	10Y	2Y	Property

0

OFFENSE LITERAL	SERIOUSNESS CATEGORY	SOURCE	MAXIMUM TERM	MINIMUM TERM	OFFENSE TYPE
Threatening verbally	v	27, § 562	10Y	2Y	Property
Failure to appear					
Felony*	V	27, § 12B			
Misdemeanor*	VII	27, § 12B			
False alarms, fire, ambulance rescue squad calls	or V	27, § 156	5Y		Property
False imprisonment	V	CL			Person
False statement					
On application for funds from Maryla higher education commission	and VII	27, § 151B(a)	1Y		Property
Rumor as to bomb	VII	27, § 151A	104		Property
To official or agencies of state or its su divisions	ub- VII	27, § 151	6M		Property
To peace or police officers	VII	27, § 150	6M		Property
Falsifying, destroying, concea ing, accessing, etc., public recor	1411	27, § 45A	3Y		Property
Federal income tax evasion*	VII				
Forgery					
Forgery, counterfeiting, etc. (27, § (a))	44 V	CL	10Y		Property
Forg <mark>er</mark> y, counterfeiting, etc. of pul documents	blic V	27, § 45	10Y	2Y	Property
Forgery, etc. of prescriptions, etc.	VI	27, § 55	2Y		Property
Orders, etc., for money or goods	V	27, § 48	10Y	2Y	Property
Uttering (27, § 44 (b))	V	CL	10Y		Property
Fraud					
Abandoning or refusing to return, lea motor vehicle	used VII	27, § 206	1Y		Property
Failure to provide or providing false formation wilfully or with intent evade taxes		TG § 13-1024(a)	18M		Property

 $\bigcirc$ 

OFFENSE LITERAL	SERIOUSNESS CATEGORY	SOURCE	MAXIMUM TERM	MINIMUM TERM	OFFENSE TYPE
Falsely Representing self as lawyer	VII	BOP § 10-602	1Y		Property
Medicaid fraud, under \$500	VII	27, § 230B	3Y		Property
Medicaid fraud, \$500 or more	V	27, § 230B	5Y		Property
Misappropriation by fiduciaries, gen ally	ner- V	27, § 132	5Y	1Y	Property
Misuse by lawyer	V	BOP § 10-306	5Y		Property
Public assistance fraud, generally	VII	27, § 230A	3Y		Property
Willful failure to file income tax return	n VII	TG § 13-1001(c)	5Y		Property
Willful failure to withhold income tax	VII	ТG § 13-1007(b)	5Y		Property
Willful preparation of false income return	tax VII	TG § 13-1004	5Y		Property
Gambling					
Betting, wagering, etc.; pools on horsetc.	ses, VII	27, § 240	1Y	6M	Property
Keeping gaming table or place	VII	27, § 241	1Y	6M	Property
Handgun					
Carrying, etc., with deliberate purpose injure or kill	e to V	27, § 36B(b)(iv)	5Y	5Y	Person
Obliterating, etc., identification mark number	or VI	27, § 444	3Y		Person
Restrictions on sale, transfer and poss sion of pistols and revolvers	ses- VI	27, § 445(b),(c)	3Y		Person
Sale, transfer, etc., of stolen pistols	VI	27, § 446	3Y		Person
Short-barrelled rifles and shotguns, t lawful possession	un- VI	27, § 481C(b)	5Y		Person
Unlawful use in commission of felony crime of violence, 1st offense	or III	27, § 36B(d)(1)	20Y	5Y	Person
Unlawful use in commission of felony crime of violence, subsequent	or II	27,§36B(d)(2)	20Y	5Y	Person
Unlawful wearing, carrying, etc., weapon offense, generally	1st VII	27, § 36B(b)(i)	3Y	30D	Person
OFFENSE LITERAL	SERIOUSNESS CATEGORY	SOURCE	MAXIMUM TERM	MINIMUM TERM	OFFENSE TYPE
---	-------------------------	-------------------	-----------------	-----------------	-----------------
Unlawful wearing, carrying on sch property, etc., 1st weapon offense	ool VII	27, § 36B(b)(i)	3Y	90D	Person
Unlawful wearing, carrying, etc., 2 weapon offense, generally	2nd III	27, § 36B(b)(ii)	10Y	1Y	Person
Unlawful wearing, carrying on sch property, etc., 2nd weapon offense	ool III	27, § 36B(b)(ii)	10Y	3Y	Person
Unlawful wearing, carrying, etc., m than two prior weapon offenses, gen ally		27, § 36B(b)(iii)	10Y	3Ү	Person
Unlawful wearing, carrying on sch property, etc., more than two pr weapon offenses		27, § 36B(b)(iii)	10Y	5Y	Person
Wearing, carrying, etc., under influence	ce VI	27, § 36E(l)	1Y		Person
Harmful substances					
Distributing, etc., to minors, 1st offens	se VII	27,§301A(a),(b)	18M		Drug
Distributing, etc., to minors, subseque	ent VII	27, § 301A(a),(b)	3Y		Drug
Smelling or inhaling harmful substance	ces VII	27, § 301(a)	6M		Drug
Hinder police officer	VI	CL			Person
Home improvement, without cense	li- VII	BR § 8-601	2Y		Property
Homicide by motor vehicle vessel while intoxicated	or VI	27, § 388A(b)	5Y		Person .
Incest (27, § 335)	V	CL	10Y	1Y	Person
Indecent exposure (27, § 335A)	VI	CL	3Y		Person
Interference, obstruction or fair representation of fire or em gency services personnel		27, § 11D	3Y		Person
Interfering with rights of me tally retarded individual	en- VII	HG § 7-1102	2Y		Person
Kidnapping					
Child under 16	II	27, § 338	30Y		Person
Generally	II	27, § 337	30Y		Person

Appendix A: Maryland Sentencing Guidelines Offenses • 8

October 1, 1996

	CATEGORY	SOURCE	MAXIMUM TERM	MINIMUM TERM	OFFENSI
Lotteries					
Devices to evade lottery proscription	VII	27, § 357	12M	3M	Propert
Importing ticket or possession of lotter records or money	ry, VII	27, § 362	1Y		Propert
Keeping place for selling, etc., of lotte tickets	ery VII	27,§ 360	1Y		Propert
Owner permitting use of house, etc., j sale of tickets	for VII	27, § 361	1Y		Propert
-Sale or Drawing of lottery	VII	27, § 356	12M	3M	Propert
-Subsequent	VI	27, § 366	5Y		Propert
Maiming					
Malicious injury to tongue, nose, e limb, etc.***	ye, III	27, § 385	15Y		Person
Mayhem; tarring and feathering (27, 384)***	, ş III	CL	10Y	18M	Persor
Malfeasance, misconduct in c fice	of- V	CL			Persor Drug Propert
Manslaughter					
By automobile, vessel, etc.	IV	27, § 388	10Y		Person
Involuntary (27, § 387)	IV	CL	10Y		Persor
Voluntary (27, § 387)	IV	CL	10Y		Persor
Motor vehicle offenses (only i carcerable traffic offenses.)*	n- VII				
Murder**					
1st degree, during rape, etc. (27, § 410	)) I	CL	LIFE		Persor
1st degree, generally (27, § 407)	I	CL	LIFE		Persor
1st degree perpetration of arson (27, 408)	,§ I	CL	LIFE		Persor
1st degree burning barn, tobacco ho etc. (27,§ 409)	use I	CL	LIFE		Persor
1st degree, attempted	II	CL	LIFE		Persor

	ERIOUSNESS CATEGORY	SOURCE	MAXIMUM TERM	MINIMUM TERM	OFFENSE TYPE
1st degree, solicitation	II	CL	LIFE		Person
2nd degree (27, § 411)	II	CL	30Y		Person
2nd degree, attempted	III	CL	30Y		Person
<b>Obstructing justice (27, § 26)</b>	V	CL	5Y		Person
Paraphernalia					
Controlled dangerous substance-par phernalia-delivery or sale generally, e 1st offense		27, § 287A(d)(1)	Fine		Drug
Controlled dangerous substance-par phernalia-delivery or sale generally, e subsequent		27,§287A(d)(1)	2Y		Drug
Controlled dangerous substance-par phernalia-use or possession, with inte to use, 1st offense		27, § 287A(c)	Fine		Drug
Controlled dangerous substance-par phernalia-use or possession, with inte to use, subsequent		27, § 287A(c)	2Y		Drug
Controlled dangerous substance-par phernalia-delivery or sale to minor adult three or more years older		27, § 287A(d)(2)	8Y		Drug
Perjury					
Public assistance fraud in application (88A, § 62)	on IV	CL	10Y		Property
-Subornation of perjury	IV	27, § 438	10Y		Person
Willfully filing false income tax returr perjury	ıs- IV	TG § 13-1002(b)	10Y		Property
Perverted sexual practices	VII	27, § 554	10Y		Person
Poisoning					
Attempted	II	27, § 450	10Y	2Y	Person
Contaminating water, food, etc.	П	27, § 451	20Y		Person

OFFENSE LITERAL	SERIOUSNESS CATEGORY	SOURCE	MAXIMUM TERM	MINIMUM TERM	OFFENSE
Pollutants					
Dispersing into state waters, first offer	nse VII	E§9-322	1Y		Property
Dispersing into state waters, subseque	ent VII	E§9-322	2Y		Property
Dispersing into state waters, falsificat	ion VII	Е§9-343(b)	6M		Property
Possession					
Compounding or selling different dr controlled dangerous substance, me cine, etc.		27, § 300(i)	12M	1M	Property
Prescription drugs-manufacture, dist ute, etc.; obtain by fraud, etc., forge etc., label property, destruction		27, § 300(g-1)	2Y		Property
Unlawful possession or administering another; obtaining, etc., substance paraphernalia by fraud, forgery, misn resentation, etc.; affixing forged lab altering etc., label; unlawful possess or distribution of controlled parapher lia - marijuana	or rep- els; sion	27, § 287	1Y		Drug
Unlawful possession or administering another; obtaining, etc., substance paraphernalia by fraud, forgery, miss resentation, etc.; affixing forged lab altering, etc., label; unlawful possess or distribution of, controlled parapher lia - non-marijuana	or rep- pels; sion	27, § 287	4Y		Drug
Unsolicited mailing of certain dru controlled dangerous substances, m cines, etc.		27, § 300(j)	6M		Property
Prostitution, etc.					
Bawdyhouses and houses of ill fame	VI	27, § 15	1Y		Property
Detaining person in house of prost tion for debt, etc.	itu- IV	27, § 431	12Y		Person
Pandering generally	IV	27, § 426	12Y		Person
Placing, etc., of spouse in house of pro tution, etc.	osti- IV	27, § 429	10Y		Person

0

OFFENSE LITERAL	SERIOUSNESS CATEGORY	SOURCE	MAXIMUM TERM	MINIMUM TERM	OFFENSE TYPE
Placing, etc., person for immoral p poses	ur- IV	27, § 427	10Y		Person
Receiving earnings of prostitute	IV	27, § 430	10Y		Person
Receiving money, etc., for procuring p son for house of prostitution, etc.	ver- IV	27, § 428	10Y		Person
-Solicitation	VII	27, § 15(e)	1Y		Property
Transporting person for prostitution	IV	27, § 432	10Y		Person
Rape					
1st degree	Ι	27, § 462(a)	LIFE		Person
2nd degree	II	27, § 463(a)	20Y		Person
Reckless endangerment	V	12A-2	5Y		Person
Resisting arrest	VI	CL			Person
Rioting	IV	CL			Person
Robbery (27, § 486)	IV	CL	15Y		Person
Robbery with a deadly weap (27, § 488)	on III	CL	20Y		Person
Sabotage					
Attempted	. VI	27, § 538	5Y	6M	Property
Intentional defective workmanship	V	27, § 537	10Y	1Y	Property
Intentional injury to or interference u property	vith V	27, § 536	10Y	1Y	Property
Serial numbers, removing, etc.	VII	27, § 389	1Y		Property
Sex offense					
1st degree	I	27, § 464(a)	LIFE		Person
2nd degree	II	27,§464A(a)	20Y		Person
3rd degree	V	27, § 464B(a)	10Y		Person
4th degree	VII	27, § 464C(a)	1Y		Person
Sodomy (27, § 553)	V	CL	10Y		Person
Stalking	V	27, § 121B(a)	5Y		Person

()

	ERIOUSNESS CATEGORY	SOURCE	MAXIMUM TERM	MINIMUM TERM	OFFENSE TYPE
Telephone, unlawful use of	VII	27,§ 555A	3Y		Property
Theft					
\$300 or more	V	27, § 342	15Y		Property
Less than \$300	VII	27, § 342	18M		Property
Trespass on posted property	VII	27, § 576	3M		Property
Unauthorized connections, etc tampering or interfering with meters, poles, wires, etc.	100	27, § 194	6M		Property
Unauthorized use of livestoc vehicle, etc.	k, V	27, § 349	4Y	6M	Property
Weapons					
Carrying dangerous or deadly weapo etc., openly with intent to injure	on, VII	27, § 36(a)(1)	ЗҮ		Person
Carrying or possessing deadly weap on school property, other than handgur		27,§36A(a)	ЗҮ	_	Person
Carrying dangerous or deadly weap openly or concealed with deliberate i tent to kill or injure		27, § 36(a)(2)	ЗҮ	ЗҮ	Person
Carrying or wearing concealed, dange ous or deadly weapon, etc.	er- VII	27, § 36(a)(1)	ЗҮ		Person
Possession or use of machine gun	III	27, § 373	20Y		Person
Use, etc., of a weapon in a drug offen 1st offense	se, III	27, § 281A(b)	20Y	5Y	Person
Use, etc., of a weapon in a drug offen subsequent	se, III	27, § 281A(b)	20Y	10Y	Person
Use, etc., of a weapon in a drug offen 1st offense (only for certain weapons)	se, III	27, § 281A(c)	20Y	10Y	Person
	se, III	27, § 281A(c)	20Y	20Y	Person

OFFENSE LITERAL	SERIOUS		SOURCE	MAXIMUM TERM	MINIMUM TERM	OFFENSE TYPE
Wiretapping						
Breaking and entering, etc., i move, or adjust equipment	to place, re-	V	CJP § 10-412	10Y		Property
Unlawful interception of c tions	communica-	V	CJP § 10-402(a)	5Y		Property

\* The offense is not a Maryland Sentencing Guidelines offense and a worksheet should not be prepared if a defendant is found guilty or given a PBJ. It is listed only to provide the worksheet preparer an offense seriousness category with regards to calculating the defendant's prior adult criminal record.

\*\*Incidents in which the State is seeking the death penalty (i.e., 27, § 413) are exclusions under the Maryland Sentencing Guidelines. There is no need to prepare a Guidelines Worksheet for these offenses.

\*\*\*Repealed effective October 1, 1996.

\*\*\*\*Effective October 1, 1996.

#### APPENDIX B

#### CLASSIFICATION OF THE PRIOR ADULT CRIMINAL RECORD

#### PROCEDURES

If the offender has ever been convicted of an offense as an adult or received an adjudication of guilt, use the criteria in Table B.1 (p. B-3) or B.2 (pp. B-6-B-7) before completing the worksheet for each criminal event to determine whether the prior record for that criminal event should be considered Minor, Moderate or Major. Using the Criteria for Prior Record form (p. B-4) to record the details of prior record information will make worksheet tabulation simpler and more accurate. The procedure for the proper use of Table B.1 consists of the following steps:

- 1. Count the number of prior adjudications of guilt according to the Seriousness Categories in Appendix A.
- Taking the number of adjudications in the most serious category of offenses, refer to Table B.1 and locate the block containing the number of convictions for that seriousness category.
- Use the criteria in the identified block to classify the record as Minor, Moderate or Major.

Table B.2 may be used instead of Table B.1 to classify a prior record. It is simply a verbal description of Table B.1

#### ADDITIONAL INSTRUCTIONS

#### Prior Adult Criminal Record

The prior adult criminal record includes all adjudications of guilt preceding the current sentencing event, whether the offense(s) was committed before or after the instant one. Probations before judgment (PBJ) and convictions under the Federal Youth Corrections Act (FYCA) are included unless expunged from the record. (If a PBJ or FYCA conviction appears in the defendant's record, it has not been expunged.) Not considered part of a prior adult criminal record are public local laws, municipal infractions, contempt, criminal non-support, and non-incarcerable traffic offenses. If the seriousness category of a Maryland offense is not in the Manual, use Seriousness Category VII.

#### Different Criminal Events Sentenced Together

If m	ultiple	offe	nses	from	diff	erent	crimina	1	events	are	being
sentenced	toget	her	at	this	sent	encing	event	59	the d	offen	der's
criminal	record	will	inc	lude	any	adjudi	cation	of	guilt	prid	or to

the current sentencing and will be the same for each offense being sentenced at this time.

#### Convictions Out of State

If an offender has ever been convicted out of state, the offense should be matched as closely as possible to a Maryland offense. If no Maryland counterpart exists, the offense should be counted in the lowest seriousness category, VII, and the sentencing judge should be informed.

#### Theft-Type Offenses

In 1978, a comprehensive theft statute replaced the previously separate designation of offenses such as Larceny, Larceny by Trick, Larceny after Trust, Embezzlement, False Pretenses, Shop- lifting, and Receiving Stolen Goods. For purposes of guidelines, the old offenses should be considered "Theft under \$300" if they were misdemeanors and "Theft \$300 or More" if they were felonies.

#### Criminal Record Decay Factor

If an offender has lived in the community for at least ten years prior to the instant offense without parole or probation supervision and without any adjudication of guilt, his criminal record should be lowered one level: from Major to Moderate, from Moderate to Minor, or from Minor to None.

#### Conspiracies, Attempts and Solicitations

Conspiracies, attempts and solicitations should be considered in the same seriousness category as the substantive offense unless placed in a different category in Appendix A or specifically addressed by separate statute (e.g., Attempted Arson, 27/10). Accessory before or after the fact is considered to be one seriousness category below the substantive offense.

### CRITERIA FOR PRIOR ADULT CRIMINAL RECORD

### NUMBER OF CONVICTIONS

		1	2	3	4	5-9	10 or more
	1	Major	Major	Major	Major	Major	Major
ORY	1	Major if combined with any offenses in Categories III - VI or any 5 offenses Moderate	Major	Major	Major	Major	- Major
CATEGORY	111	Major if combined with two or more offenses in Categories IV-VI, or any 6 offenses Moderate	Major	Major	Major	Major	Major
SERIOUSNESS	IV	Major if combined with 3 or more offenses from Categories V or VI. or any 7 offenses Moderate	Major if combined with 1 or more offenses from Categories V or VI. or any 6 offenses Moderate	Major	Major	Major	Major
SE	v	Major if combined with any 8 offenses Moderate if com- bined with not less than 3, nor more than 7 offenses Minor	Major if combined with any 7 offenses Moderate if com- bined with not less than 1, nor more than 6 offenses Minor	Major if combined with any 6 offenses Moderate	Major if combined with any 5 offenses Moderate	Major ,	Major
	VI	Major if combined with any 9 offenses Moderate if com- bined with not less than 4, nor more than 8 offenses Minor	Major if combined with any 8 offenses Moderate if com- bined with not less than 3, nor more than 7 offenses Minor	Major if combined with any 7 offenses Moderate if com- bined with not less than 2, nor more than 7 offenses Minor	Major if combined with any 6 offenses Moderate	Major if total number of convic- tions is equal to or greater than 10 Moderate	Mayor
	VII	Minor	Minor	Minor	Minor	Moderate	Major

MARYLAND SENTENCING DRITERIA FOR PRIOR F	A REAL PROPERTY AND A REAL	s Name	Docket Number	
JUVENILE DELINQUENCY	Offense Title (With f	inding of Delinquency)	Commitment Date	
Offender 26 or older when current offense committed				
Not more than 1	Finding 2 or more Fi	ndings/l Commitment	2 or more Commitmen	its
ADULT CONVICTIONS	Offense Title (Code Art.	& Sec., if available)	Disp. Date Sentenc	e
Seriousness Category I No				
Seriousness Category II No				
Seriousness Category III No				
Seriousness Category IV		,		
No				C
Seriousness Category V				
No Seriousness Category VI				
No				
Seriousness Category VII				
No				
None	Minor	Moderate	Major	
Completed By				

#### APPENDIX TABLE B.2

#### DESCRIPTION

An offender who has been found guilty of one or more offenses in the past as an adult is considered to have a major adult criminal record if his or her record contains: 0 One or more Seriousness Category I offenses. 0 One Seriousness Category II offense, combined . with: One or more offenses from Seriousness Category III - VI, or Any other five offenses. 0 Two or more Seriousness Category II offenses. 0 One Seriousness Category III offense, combined with: Two or more offenses from Seriousness Category IV - VI. or Any other six offenses. 0 Two or more Seriousness Category III offenses. 0 One Seriousness Category IV offense, combined with: Three or more offenses from Seriousness Category V or VI, or Any other seven offenses. 0 Two Seriousness Category IV offenses, combined with: One or more offenses from Seriousness Category V or VI, or Any other six offenses. 0 Three or more Seriousness Category IV offenses. 0 One Seriousness Category V offense, combined with any other eight offenses. 0 Two Seriousness Category V offenses, combined with any other seven offenses.

> Three Seriousness Category V offenses, combined with any other six offenses.

> Four Seriousness Category V offenses, combined with any other five offenses.

Major Record

B-5

- Five or more Seriousness Category V offenses.
- Ten or more adjudications of guilt from any combination of seriousness categories.

Moderate Record An offender who has been found guilty of one or more offenses in the past as an adult is considered to have a moderate record if he or she does not meet any of the criteria for a <u>major</u> record, but whose record contains:

- One Seriousness Category II offense.
- One Seriousness Category III offense.
- One or two Seriousness Category IV offenses.
- One Seriousness Category V offense, <u>combined</u> with not less than three nor more than seven other offenses.
- Two Seriousness Category V offenses, combined with not less than one nor more than six other offenses.
- O Three or four Seriousness Category V offenses.
- One Seriousness Category VI offense, combined with not less than four nor more than eight other offenses.
- <sup>o</sup> Two Seriousness Category VI offenses, <u>combined</u> with not less than three nor more than seven other offenses.
- Three Seriousness Category VI offenses, <u>combined</u> with not less than two nor more than six other offenses.
- Not less than four nor more than nine Seriousness Category VI offenses.
- Not less than five nor more than nine Seriousness Category VII offenses.

An offender who has been found guilty as an adult of one or more offenses in the past, but does not meet the criteria for either a major or a moderate record is considered to have a minor record.

Minor Record

### APPENDIX TABLE C.1a

SENTENCING MATRIX FOR OFFENSES AGAINST PERSONS

Offense Score	0	1	2	3	4	5	6	7 or more
1	Р	P	Р <b>- 3</b> М	3M-1Y	3M-18M	3M-2Y	6M-2Y	<i>1Y-3Y</i>
2	P-6M	P-1Y	P-18M	3M-2Y	6M-3Y	1Y-5Y	18M-5Y	3Y-8Y
3	P-2Y	P-2Y	6M-3Y	1Y-5Y	2Y-5Y	37-27	4Y-8Y	5Y-10Y
4	<b>P-3</b> Y	6M-4Y	1Y-5Y	2Y-5Y	3Y-7Y	4Y-8Y	5Y-10Y	5Y-12Y
5	3M-4Y	6М- 5Ү	1Ү-6Ү	2Y-7Y	3Y-8Y	4Y-10Y	6Y-12Y	8Y-15Y
6	1У-6У	2Y-7Y	3Y-8Y	4Y-9Y	5Y-10Y	7Y-12Y	8Y-13Y	10Y-20Y
7	3Y-8Y	4Y-9Y	5Y-10Y	6Y-12Y	7Y-13Y	9Y-14Y	10Y-15Y	12Y-20Y
8	4Y-9Y	5Y-10Y	5Y-12Y	7Y-13Y	8Y-15Y	10Y-18Y	12Y-20Y	15Y-25Y
9	5Y-10Y	7Y-13Y	8Y-15Y	10Y-15Y	12Y-18Y	15Y-25Y	18Y-30Y	20Y-30Y
10	10Y-18Y	104-214	12Y-25Y	15Y-25Y	15Y-30Y	18Y-30Y	20Y-35Y	20Y-L
11	12Y-20Y	15Y-25Y	18Y-25Y	20Y-30Y	20Y-30Y	25Y-35Y	25Y-40Y	25Y-L
12	15Y-25Y	18Y-25Y	18Y-30Y	20Y-35Y	20Y-35Y	25 <i>Y</i> -40 <i>Y</i>	25Y-L	25Y-L
13	20Y-30Y	25Y-35Y	25Y-40Y	25Y-L	25Y-L	30Y-L	L	L
14	20Y-L	25Y-L	28Y-L	30Y-L	L	L	L	L
15	25Y-L	30Y-L	35Y-L	L	L	L	L	L

Offender Score

(Rev. 7/87)

P=Probation M=Months Y=Year L=Life

\*

÷

i.

### APPENDIX TABLE C.1b

### SENTENCING GUIDELINES FOR OFFENSES AGAINST PERSONS

OFFENSE SCORE	OFFENDER SCORE	GUIDELINE RANGE	OFFENSE SCORE	OFFENDER SCORE	GUIDELINE RANGE
1	0	P	6	0	1Y-6Y
1	ĩ	P	6	1	2Y-7Y
1	2	P-3M	6		3Y-8Y
ī		3M-1Y	6	3	47-97
ĩ	3 4	3M-18M	6	2 3 4	5Y-10Y
1	5	3M-2Y	6	5	7Y-12Y
1	6	6M-2Y	6	6	8Y-13Y
1	7+	14-34	6	7+	10Y-20Y
1	7.4	11-51	0	/ +	101-201
2 2 2 2 2 2	0	P-6M	7	0	3Y-8Y
2	1	P-1Y	7	1	4Y-9Y
2	2	P-18M	7	2	5Y-10Y
2	2 3 4	3M-2Y	7	3	6Y-12Y
2	4	6M-3Y	7	0 1 2 3 4	7Y-13Y
2	5	1Y-5Y	7	5	9Y-14Y
2	6	18M-5Y	7	5 6	10Y-15Y
2	7+	3Y-8Y	7	7+	12Y-20Y
			<u>×</u>		
3	0	P-2Y	8	0	4Y-9Y
3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3	1	P-2Y	8	1	5Y-10Y
3	2 3	6M-3Y	8	2 3 4	5Y-12Y
3	3	1Y-5Y	8	3	7Y-13Y
3	4	2Y-5Y	8	4	8Y-15Y
3	5	· 3Y-7Y	8	5	10Y-18Y
3	6	4Y-8Y	8	6	12Y-20Y
3	7+	5Y-10Y	8	7+	15Y-25Y
4	0	P-3Y	9	0	5Y-10Y
4	1	6M-4Y	9	1	7Y-13Y
4	2 3 4	1Y-5Y	9	2 3 4	8Y-15Y
4	3	2Y-5Y	9	3	10Y-15Y
4		3Y-7Y	9		12Y-18Y
4	5 6	4Y-8Y	9	5	15Y - 25Y
4		5Y-10Y	9		18Y-30Y
4	7+	6Y-12Y	9	7+	20Y-30Y
5	0	3M-4Y	10	0	10Y-18Y
5		6M-5Y	10		10Y-21Y
5	2	1Y-6Y	10	2	12Y-25Y
5	1 2 3 4	2Y-7Y	10	1 2 3 4	15Y-25Y
5	4	3Y-8Y	10	1	15Y-30Y
5	5	41-101	10	4	191-301 18Y-30Y
5	6	6Y-12Y	10	5	20Y-35Y
5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5	0 7+	8Y-15Y	10	o 7+	
5	11	01-101	10	/+	20Y-L

(Rev. 7/87)

 $\bigcirc$ 

### APPENDIX TABLE C.1b (Continued)

OFFENSE	OFFENDER	GUIDELINE	OFFENSE	OFFENDER	GUIDELINE
SCORE	SCORE	RANGE	SCORE	SCORE	RANGE
11	0	12Y-20Y	14	0	20Y-L
11	1	15Y-25Y	14	1	25Y-L
11	2	18Y-25Y	14	2	28Y-L
11	3	20Y-30Y	14	3	30Y-L
11	4	20Y-30Y	14	4	L
11	5	25Y-35Y	14	5	L
11	6	25Y-40Y	14	6	L
11	7+	25Y-L	14	7+	L
12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 13 13 13 13 13	0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7+ 0 1 2 3 4 5	15Y-25Y 18Y-25Y 18Y-30Y 20Y-35Y 20Y-35Y 25Y-40Y 25Y-L 25Y-L 20Y-30Y 25Y-35Y 25Y-40Y 25Y-40Y 25Y-L	15 15 15 15 15 15 15	0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7+	25Y-L 30Y-L 35Y-L L L L L
13 13 13	5 6 7+	30Y-L L L			

### SENTENCING GUIDELINES FOR OFFENSES AGAINST PERSONS

# APPENDIX TABLE C. 2a SENTENCING MATRIX FOR DRUG OFFENSES

				)	OFFEND	ER SCORE			17 N
	OFFENSE	0	1	2	3	4	5	6	7 or more
	SERIOUSNESS CATEGORY VII	P	P	P	P <b>-</b> 1M	P-3M	P-6M	3M-6M	6M-12M
	SERIOUSNESS CATEGORY V	P-6M	P-12M	3M-12M	6M-18M	1У-2У	1.5Y-2.5Y	2У-ЗҮ	3Y-4Y
	SERIOUSNESS CATEGORY IV	P-12M	P-18M	6M-18M	1Y-2Y	1.5Y-2.5Y	2Y-3Y	3Y-4Y	3.5Y-5Y
A	SERIOUSNESS CATEGORY III EXCEPT IMPORTATION	6M– 3Y	1У-3У	18M–4Y	3Y-7Y	4Y-8Y	5Y-10Y	7Y <b>-1</b> 4Y	12Y-20Y
	SERIOUSNESS CATEGORY III IMPORTATION	1Y-4Y	2Y-5Y	ЗҮ-6Ү	4Y-7Y	5Y-8Y	6Y-10Y	8Y-15Y	15Y-25Y

P=Probation M=Months Y=Years

#### APPENDIX TABLE C.2b

#### OFFENDER GUIDELINE SERIOUSNESS OFFENDER GUIDELINE SERIOUSNESS SCORE RANGE CATEGORY SCORE RANGE CATEGORY 0 Ρ 0 6M-3Y 1 P 1 1Y-3Y 2 Ρ 2 18M-4Y 3 P-1M III 3 VII 3Y-7Y 4 P-3M (Except 4 4Y-8Y 5 5 6 Importation) P-6M 5Y-10Y 6 3M-6M 7Y-14Y 7+ 6M-12M 7+ 12Y-20Y 0 0 P-6M 1Y-4Y1 1 P-12M 2Y-5Y2 3M-12M 2 3Y-6Y 3 4 V 3 6M-18M III 4Y-7Y 1Y-2Y (Importation) 4 5Y-8Y 5 6 5 6 1.5Y-2.5Y 6Y-10Y 2Y-3Y 8Y-15Y 7+ 7+ 3Y-4Y 15Y-25Y 0 P-12M 1 P-18M 2 6M-18M 3 IV 1Y-2Y4 1.5Y-2.5Y 5 2Y-3Y 6 3Y-4Y 7+ 3.5Y-5Y

#### SENTENCING GUIDELINES FOR DRUG OFFENSES

(Rev. 7/87)

C - 7

×

\*.

(

### APPENDIX TABLE 3C.a

SENTENCING MATRIX FOR PROPERTY OFFENSES

				OLI BROBIL D				
OFFENSE SERIOUSNESS CATEGORY	0	1	2	3	4	5	6	7 or 1110112
VII	P-1M	P-3M	3M-9M	6M-1Y	9M-18M	1Y-2Y	1Y-3Y	3Y-5Y
IN	P-3M	P-6M	3M-1Y	6M-2Y	1Y-3Y	2Y–5Y	ЗҮ-6Ү	5Y-10Y
V	P-6M	P-1Y	<i>3M</i> -2Y	1Y-3Y	18M-5Y	ЗҮ-7Ү	4Y-8Y	8Y-15Y
IV	Р-1У	3M-2Y	6M-3Y	1Y-4Y	18M-7Y	3Y-8Y	5Y-12Y	10Y-20Y
III	P-2Y	6М— ЗУ	9M-5Y	1Y-5Y	2Y-8Y	3Y-10Y	7Y-15Y	15Y-30Y
II	2Y-5Y	3Y-7Y	5Y-8Y	5Y-10Y	- <u>8Y-15</u> Y	10Y-18Y	12Y-20Y	15Y-40Y

OFFENDER SCORE

(Rev. 7/87)

P=Probation M=Months Y=Years

<u>3</u>.

7

### APPENDIX TABLE C.3b

SERIOUSNESS	OFFENDER	GUIDELINE	SERIOUSNESS	OFFENDER	GUIDELINE
CATEGORY	SCORE	RANGE	CATEGORY	SCORE	RANGE
	0	P-1M		0	P-2Y
	1	P-3M		1	6M-3Y
VII	2	3M-9M	III	2	9M-5Y
	1 2 3 4 5 6	6M-1Y		3	1Y-5Y
	4	9M-18M		4	2Y-8Y
	5	1Y-2Y		5	3Y-10Y
	6	1Y-3Y		6	7Y-15Y
	7+	3Y-5Y		7	15Y-30Y
	0	P-3M		0	2Y-5Y
	1	P-6M		1	3Y-7Y
	2	3M-1Y		2	5Y-8Y
	3	6M-2Y		2 3 4	5Y-10Y
VI	1 2 3 4 5 6	1Y-3Y	II		8Y-15Y
	5	2Y-5Y		5 6	10Y-18Y
		3Y-6Y		6	12Y-20Y
	7+	5Y-10Y		7	15Y-40Y
	0	D ()(			
	0	P-6M			
	1	P-1Y			
v	1 2 3 . 4 5	3M-2Y			
v	3.	1Y-3Y			
	4	18M-5Y			
	5	3Y-7Y			
	6 7+	4Y-8Y			
	/+	8Y-15Y			
	0	P-1Y			
	1	3M-2Y	1		
	2	6M-3Y			
IV	2 3	1Y-4Y			
	4	18M-7Y			
	.5	3Y-8Y			
	6	5Y-12Y			
	7+	10Y-20Y			
	21.00	5-97 (C) - 13 (Proc.			
			1		

### SENTENCING GUIDELINES FOR PROPERTY OFFENSES

### APPENDIX D

## JURISDICTION CODES

$\frac{\text{CODE}}{01}$	JURISDICTION Allegany County	
02	Anne Arundel County	7
24	Baltimore City	
03	Baltimore County	
04	Calvert County	
05	Caroline County	
06	Carroll County	
07	Cecil County	
08	Charles County	
09	Dorchester County	
10	Frederick County	
11	Garrett County	
12	Harford County	
13	Howard County	
14	Kent County	
15	Montgomery County	
16	Prince George's Cou	nty
17	Queen Anne's County	
18	St. Mary's County	
19	Somerset County	
20	Talbot County	
21	Washington County	
22	Wicomico County	
23	Worcester County	
7/87)		

(Rev. 7/87)

D-1

### APPENDIX E

## SAMPLE CASES

Case No.		Page
1	Offense Against a Person - Single Convicted Offense	E-3
2	Drug Offense - Single Convicted Offense	E-7
3	Property Offense - Single Convicted Offense	E-10
4	Multiple Offenses - Single Criminal Event	E-14
5	Offenses Against a Person Multiple Offenses from Categories I and II - Single Criminal Event	E-20
6	Multiple Offenses - Multiple Criminal Events	E-29
7	Multiple Offenses from Single and Multiple Criminal Events	E-35
8	Mandatory Minimum Sentence	E-43

(Rev. 7/87)

(

0

(

\* 

#### SAMPLE CASE 1

#### OFFENSE AGAINST A PERSON - SINGLE CONVICTED OFFENSE

OFFENDER'S NAME: P B DOCKET NO: 00000001 DATE OF BIRTH: 02/25/66 DATE OF PLEA/VERDICT: 01/08/87 SEX: Male RACE: White DATE OF OFFENSE: 09/27/86 Mendation of State's Attorney JURISDICTION: Montgomery County CONVICTED COUNT: Robbery with a Deadly Weapon 27/488

#### OFFENSE DESCRIPTION:

On 09/27/86, police were summoned to a convenience store for a report of an armed robbery. The cashier reported that two white males had entered the store and that one of the men was armed with a sawed-off shotgun. The cashier and a clerk were instructed to lie on the floor as one of the men removed money from the cash register. The subjects fled in a car and, based on a witness's description of the vehicle, were apprehended by another unit a short time later. The defendant was identified by the cashier as the man with the shotgun. Defendant pled guilty to Robbery with a Deadly Weapon on 01/08/87.

#### OFFENDER'S PRIOR RECORD:

JUVENILE: No juvenile record was found for the name and birthdate provided.

#### ADULT:

Date	Offense	Disposition
08/01/84 06/10/85	Possession of Marijuana Unemployment Insurance Fraud	Fine \$100.00; Court Costs. 6 months suspended; 2 years probation; restitution.

The offender was still under supervision at the time of the instant offense.

### SAMPLE CASE 1 (Continued)

### COMPUTATION OF OFFENSE AND OFFENDER SCORES ROBBERY WITH A DEADLY WEAPON 27/488

#### OFFENSE SCORE:

Α.	Seriousness Category of Instant Offense		
	As shown in Appendix A, Robbery with a Deadly Weapon is a Category III Offense.	5	points
В.	Victim Injury		
	No injury	0	points
C.	Weapon Usage		
	A firearm (sawed-off shotgun) was used.	2	points
D.	Special Vulnerability of Victim		
	Victim over 10 and under 60 years old and not mentally nor physically handicapped	0	points
	TOTAL OFFENSE SCORE	7	points

### OFFENDER SCORE:

Α.	Relationship to CJS When Instant Offense Occurred		
	Was on probation for Unemployment Compensation Fraud.	1	point
в.	Juvenile Delinquency		
	No record found.	0	points
с.	Prior Adult Criminal Record		
	Step I - Possession of Marijuana - Seriousness Category VII Unemployment Insurance Fraud - Seriousn Category VII	ess	

.

#### SAMPLE CASE 1 (Continued)

The number of prior convictions according to Seriousness Category are:

SERIOUSNESS	NUMBER OF PRIOR				
CATEGORY	CONVICTIONS				
I	0				
II	0				
III	0				
IV	0				
v	0				
VI	0				
VII	2				
- Since the offen	der's most serious pi				

Step II - Since the offender's most serious prior convictions were in Category VII, refer to the block in Appendix Table B.1 which indicates two Seriousness Category VII convictions. This block identifies the record as "Minor".

Step III - An offender with a minor record receives 1 point

1 point

D. Prior Adult Parole/Probation Violations

None.

0 points

TOTAL OFFENDER SCORE 2 points

#### GUIDELINES RANGES:

An examination of Appendix Table C.la or C.lb shows that the recommended range for an offense score of 7 and an offender score of 2 is 5Y-10Y.

MARYLAND SENTENCING OFFENDER NAME (Last.	First,	Middle)	Male Female	Black W	hite Hispanic Other	BIRTHDATE	JURISDICTION
	P		1 2	1 (	2 3 4	012 215 6	6 15
PSI DATE OF OFFENSE DATE OF SENTER			DISPOSITION	TYPE		0 6 6 0 0	0 10
Qres 2 No 0 9 2 7 8 6 0 1 1	10 8 1 7 Delas agreement				2 Plea	no agreement	AOC USE ONLY. DO NOT WRITE IN SPACE BELOW
AT THIS CONVICTED CRIMINAL WORKSHEE	i frida agreement	- state nature o	i mendation of St	atolo	3 Court	1710-080-010183-0200-020-0	In the lit of ACE DEEON
SENTENCING OFFENSES EVENTS	7	ng recom	nendation of sc	ale s			INC
	Attorney				4 Jury t	mai	
CONVICTED OFFENSE TITLE		AOC CODE	MD. CODE, ART. & SECTION	STAT. MAX.	DOCKET	NUMBER	SUS
lst						8	ACT
RDW			27/488	20Y	00000001		STACON
2nd							PRORAN
							FI
3rd							REST
		11 1					cs
OFFENSE SCORE(S) (Offense Against a Person Only)	OFFENDER SCORE	GUIDELINES	ACTUAL SENTENCE		Imposed, suspended, ti	ime served, probation,	01
1st Off 2nd Off 3rd Off A. Seriousness Category	A. Relationship to CJS When	RANGE			Imposed, suspended, ti fine, restitution, commi		02
01 01 01 = V · VII	Instant Count Occurred	1st Offense	1st Convicted Offense		Subsequent offender	1 Yes 2 No	
03 03 03 = IV	0 = None or Pending Cases	<u>57</u> TO					USE
05 05 = III	()= Court or Other Criminal	<u>-107</u>					
08 08 08 = 11	Justice Supervision	2nd Offense	1				sus
10 10 10 = I	B. Juvenile Delinquency	TO					ACT
B. Victim Injury	O = Not More Than One Finding of Delinguency						CON PRO
0 0 0 = No Injury	or over age 25		2nd Convicted Offense	0	Subsequent offender	1 Yes 2 No	FI
1 1 1 = Injury, Non-Permanent	1 = Two or More Findings, No or One Commitment	3rd Otlense					REST
2 2 2 = Permanent Injury or Death	2 = Two or More Commitments	TO					cs
C. Weapon Usage	C. Prior Adult Criminal Record						
0 0 0 = No Weapon	0 = None $() = Minor$	OVERALL					
1 1 1 = Weapon Other Than Firearm	5 = Major 3 = Moderate	GUIDELINES			i		SUS
2 2 = Firearm or Explosive	5 = Major 5 = Moderate	(For Multiple	3rd Convicted Offense	)	Subsequent offender	1 Yes 2 No	ACT
D. Special Vulnerability of Victim		Counts Only)					CON PRO
0 0 = No	Violations						F1
1 1 1 = Yes	0= No 1 = Yes	TO					REST
							CS
0 7 OFFENSE SCORE (S)	0 2 OFFENDER SCORE	· · · ·					TLRANGE
REASON IF ACTUAL SENTENCE DEPARTS FROM GU	DELINES BANGE		INSTITUTIONAL/PAR	OLE RECO	MMENDATION/AD	DITIONAL INFO.	TURANGE
REASON IF ACTORE SERVEROL DEPARTS FROM GO	DELINES HANGE						
							TOTALI
							TOTALS
							TOTALN
							TF1
							REST
							TCS
							TRANGE
			J D			P.A.	TOUT2
SENTENCING JUDGE	SIGNATURE		WORKSHEET COMPLETED BY			TITLE	TUSE
L	OPIES: White-Judge; Blue-AOC; Green-Attac	imitment	or Probation Order; Yellow-File;	Pink-Prosecu	rtion; Gold-Defense		(Rev. 7/87)

SAMPLE	CASE	2
	1	

27/286(b)(3)

DRUG OFFENSE - SINGLE CONVICTED OFFENSE

OFFENDER'S NAME:RCDOCKET NO: 00000002DATE OF BIRTH:11/10/58DATE OF PLEA/VERDICT:06/30/86SEX:FemaleDISPOSITION TYPE:Charge BargainRACE:WhiteJURISDICTION:Montgomery CountyDATE OF OFFENSE:03/07/86CONVICTED COUNT:Possession withIntent to Distribute MarijuanaDistribute Marijuana

#### OFFENSE DESCRIPTION:

On 03/07/86, police serving a search warrant at defendant's home found one plastic bag of marijuana, a glass jar of marijuana seeds and a scale in the living room; six bags of marijuana in the master bedroom; and a green can, labelled "one oz. of grass," which contained marijuana seeds in another bedroom. The subject was arrested and eventually charged with Possession with Intent to Distribute Marijuana and simple Possession. On 06/30/86, the defendant pled guilty to one count of Possession with Intent to Distribute.

#### OFFENDER'S PRIOR RECORD:

JUVENILE	: None known.	THE ALL
ADULT:	None known.	

#### COMPUTATION OF OFFENSE AND OFFENDER SCORES POSSESSION WITH INTENT TO DISTRIBUTE MARIJUANA 27/286(b)(3)

#### OFFENSE SCORE:

There is no offense score for drug offenses.

#### OFFENDER SCORE:

A. Relationship to CJS when Instant Offense Occurred

None.

0 points

B. Juvenile Delinquency

Defendant was over 26 years of age when the instant offense was committed.

0 points

SAMPLE CASE 2 (Continued)

C. Prior Adult Criminal Record

No record found.

0 points

D. Prior Adult Parole/Probation Violations

None.

0 points

### TOTAL OFFENSE SCORE 0 points

#### OFFENDER SCORE:

An examination of Appendix Table C.2a or C.2b shows that the guideline sentence for Possession with intent to Distribute Marijuana (Seriousness Category IV) by a person with an offender score of 0 is P-12M.

MARYL	SENTE		40	OFFENDER	NAME (L	ast.			First.	'iddle)	6			e Bleck	White HI	spanic 3	Other	BIRTHDAT		ц	URISDICTION
GUIDEL	S WOR		-		Laure	C	0.000		R		_		10	1		3	4	111	10 5	0	15
PSI O Yes 2 1 AT THIS SENTENCING NUMBER OF	CONVICT OFFENSI	0 ED	17	86 CRIMINAL EVENTS	0	OF SENTEN	0 8	0f	Plea agreement <u>plea</u> to h				SPOSITION	TYPE		_		n, no agreen rt trial rtrial	ent	INC	SE ONLY. DO NOT
CONVICTER	D OFFENSE T	TLE		0 1						AOC COD	E	MD. CODE, AR	T. & SECTION	STAT. M	AX.		DOCKET	TNUMBER		SUS	
1st Pos 2nd	session	w/i	to	Dist	ribut	e Mar	ijuana	:		1.1		27/286	(Ъ.) (З)	5Y	00	0000	02		4.		CON
										11 1										FI	
3rd																				REST	
Personal Person	SCORE(S)							and the second se	R SCORE	GUIDELIN		ACTUAL SE	ENTENCE		Imp	osed, su	uspended, tion, com	time served, p munity service	robation,	01	
SC/A	nd Off 3rd (			Serlousner	ss Cater	lory			o CJS When Occurred	1st Offens	-	1st Convicto	ed Offense	1		equent o		1 Y	es 2 N	02	
03	01 01 03 03 05 05		= V = IV = III						r Pending Cases or Other Criminal	<u>P</u> 12M	.TO									USE	
	08 08	-	= 11					Justice	e Supervision	2nd Offen										SUS	
10	10 10	-	= I B.V	ictim inju	ry		F	Not More	Than One f Delinguency						1		N 0			ACT	PR0
0	0 0	3	= N	o Injury				or over ag	ge 25 ore Findings, No	3rd Offen		2nd Convic	ted Offens	8	Subs	equent o	offender	1 Y	es 2 N	FI	
1	1 1	3	= In	jury, Non	Perman	ent	1 = 1	or One Co	ommitment	-	то									REST	-
2	2 2			ermanent	Concentration and	r Death	2 =	Two or M	ore Commitments											CS	
0	0 0		= N	/eapon Us o Weapor	n		-	Adult Cr None	timinal Record 1 = Minor	OVERAL										SUS	
2	1 1			leapon Ot			5 =	Major	3 = Moderate	(For Multi		3rd Convict	ed Offens	9	Subse	equent o	ffender	1 Y	es 2 No	ACT	
2	2 2		-	irearm or Decial Vuir	_		D. Prior	Adult Pa	role/Probation	Counts Or										CON	PRO
0	0 0		= N				1000	tions												FI	
1	1 1		= Ye	99			0=	No	1 = Yes	T	0									REST	
	_ <u>i_</u>	I	OFF	ENSE SC	ORE (S	)	00	OFFEI	NDER SCORE											CS	
REASON	IF ACTUAL	SEN	TENC	E DEPA	RTS FF	OM GU	DELINE	RANG	E	Χ.		INSTITUTIO	DNAL/PAR	OLE RE	COMME	NDAT	ION/A	DDITIONA	L INFO.	TURAN	
																				TOTALI	
											- 1										
																				TOTALN	
																				TF1	
																				REST	_
																				TCS	
																				TRANG	ε _
																				TOUT1	
											ſ			110						TOUT2	
	SENTE	NCING	JUDGE	:				SIGNATU	RE	<u> </u>		A	R					Ρ.	A. TITLE	TUSE	

COPIES: White-Judge; Blue-AOC; Green-Attach to Commitment or Probation Order; Yellow-File; Pink-Prosecution; Gold-Defense

#### SAMPLE CASE 3

#### PROPERTY OFFENSE - SINGLE CONVICTED OFFENSE

OFFENDER'S NAME: A C	DOCKET NO: 0000003
DATE OF BIRTH: 12/27/66	DATE OF PLEA/VERDICT: 08/13/86
SEX: Male	DISPOSITION TYPE: Plea/Agreed
RACE: Black	Statement of Facts
DATE OF OFFENSE: 01/17/86	JURISDICTION: Montgomery County
	CONVICTED COUNT: Theft \$300.00
	or more 27/342(f)(1)

#### · OFFENSE DESCRIPTION:

On 01/17/86, defendant was observed by a security officer in a department of a large suburban store removing seven blazers, three pairs of pants, seven skirts, and one shirt (total value - \$1,153.89). After placing the merchandise in four bags, defendant left the department, passed many cash registers without paying, went down the escalator, and was are sted as he paused to buy shopping bags. On 08/13/86, the defendant pled guilty to one count of Theft \$300.00 or more.

#### OFFENDER'S PRIOR RECORD:

#### JUVENILE:

Date	Offense	Disposition							
06/26/80	Shoplifting	Delinquent; probation							
12/11/80	Larceny	Delinquent; continued	probat	ion					
06/10/81	Unauthorized Use	Delinquent; Forestry	Greenr Camp	idge for	6				

months

#### ADULT:

Date	Offense	Disposition
02/06/85	Petty Larceny -	Unknown
	Violation of Bail Reform Act	
04/09/85	Theft	2 years probation. (D. C.)

Since 08/13/86, the subject has been in the Prince George's County Detention Center. He is still on probation in the District of Columbia where in June, 1986 his probation

#### SAMPLE CASE 3 (Continued)

officer took him to court for a show-cause hearing because of his unsatisfactory adjustment.

#### COMPUTATION OF OFFENSE AND OFFENDER SCORES THEFT \$300.00 OR MORE 27/342(f)(1)

#### OFFENSE SCORE:

There is no offense score for property offenses.

#### OFFENDER SCORE:

A. <u>Relationship to CJS When Instant Offense Occurred</u> On probation for Theft. l point

B. Juvenile Delinquency

Three findings of delinquency with one commitment.

l point

### C. Prior Adult Criminal Record

Step I - Theft - Seriousness Category VII

The number of prior convictions according to Seriousness Category are:

SERIOUSNESS	NUMBER OF PRIOR
CATEGORY	CONVICTIONS
I	0
II	0
III	0
IV	0
V	0
VI	0
VII	1

NOTE: In this case, the prior Theft must be assumed to be under \$300.00 since the amount is not known. The Petty Larceny (02/06/85) was not counted since the disposition is unknown.
- , SAMPLE CASE 3 (Continued)
- Step II Since the most serious prior conviction was in Seriousness Category VII, refer to the block in Appendix Table B.1 which indicates one Seriousness Category VII conviction. This block identifies the record as "Minor".

Step	III	-	An	offend	ler	with	а	minor	record		
			ree	ceives	1	point.				1	point

D. Prior Adult Parole/Probation Violations

No	adult	violations	prior	tı	instant	offense	0	points

TOTAL OFFENDER SCORE 3 points

### GUIDELINES RANGE:

An examination of Appendix Table C.3a or C.3b shows that the guideline sentence range for Theft \$300.00 or more (Seriousness Category V) committed by a person with an offender score of 3 is 1Y-3Y.

MARYI SENTENCING OFFENDER NAME (Last. First.	iddle)	Male Femal	Black V	White Hispanic	Other	BIRTHDATE	JURISDICT	ION
GUIDEL. S WORKSHEET		1 2		2 3	4	1 2 2 7 6	6 15	
PSI DATE OF OFFENSE DATE OF SENTENCING		DISPOSITION	TYPE			10101710	100	
Ores 2 No 0 1 1 1 1 7 8 16 0 1 2 1 1 0 8 1 7 Plea agreeme	ent - state nature o				2 Plea, r	no agreement	AOC USE ONLY. WRITE IN SPACE	
AT THIS CONVICTED CRIMINAL WORKSHEET # OF	statement;				3 Court	trial		
CRIMINAL EVENT #	S. I.( L. P.IIIP.II. I,	aj jaca			4 Jury t	rial	INC	
					C. Crauces Line		SUS	_
CONVICTED OFFENSE TITLE	AOC CODE	MD. CODE, ART. & SECTION	STAT. MA)	ι.	DOCKET I	NUMBER	ACT	
1st Theft \$300 or more	11.1	27/342(f)(1)	15Y	000000	003		STACON	_
2nd							PRORAN	
							FI	
3rd							REST	
	111						cs	
OFFENSE SCORE(S) (Offense Against a Person Only) OFFENDER SCORE	GUIDELINES	ACTUAL SENTENCE		Imposed, s	uspended, tir	me served, probation,	01	
1st Off 2nd Off 3rd Off A. Seriousness Category A. Relationship to CJS When	RANGE			fine, restitu	tion, commu	inity service	02	
01 01 01 = V · VII Instant Count Occurred	1st Offense	1st Convicted Offense	•	Subsequent of	flender	1 Yes 2 No		
03 03 03 = IV 0 = None or Pending Case	s <u>17</u> to <u>37</u>						USE	
05 05 05 = III (1)= Court or Other Crimin	al							
08 08 08 = II Justice Supervision B. Juvenile Delinguency	2nd Offense	-					sus	
10 10 10 = I $0 = \text{Not More Than One}$	TO						ACT	
B. Victim Inlury Finding of Delinquency							CON PRO	
0 0 0 = No Injury or over age 25	3rd Offense	2nd Convicted Offens	0	Subsequent	offender	1 Yes 2 No	FI	
1 1 1 = Injury, Non-Permanent or One Commitment	TO	-				142	REST	
2 2 2 = Permanent Injury or Death 2 = Two or More Commitmer							cs	
C. Weapon Usage C. Prior Adult Criminal Record	OVERALL	-						
0 0 0 = No Weapon 0 = None ()= Minor	GUIDELINES						SUS	
1 1 1 = Weapon Other Than Firearm 5 = Major 3 = Modera		3rd Convicted Offense	8	Subsequent of	ttenrier	1 Yes 2 No		
2 2 2 = Firearm or Explosive D. Special Vulnerability of Victim D. Prior Adult Parole/Probation	(For Multiple Counts Only			Cabbadaoni	inchizor	1165 2140	information in Section is	
0  0 = No		-					FI	
1 1 1 = Yes	то							
	-	ŀ					REST	
OFFENSE SCORE (S) 013 OFFENDER SCORE							cs	
		INSTITUTIONAL/PAR		OMMENDA			TLRANGE	
REASON IF ACTUAL SENTENCE DEPARTS FROM GUIDELINES RANGE		INSTITUTIONALIFAN	OLE NEG	OMMENDA	IONIADI	DITIONAL INFO.	TURANGE	and commo
							TOTALI	+
							TOTALS	
							TOTALN	
		1					TF1	
							REST	
							TCS	
							TRANGE	
							TOUT1	-
		N D				P.A.	TOUT2	-
SENTENCING JUDGE SIGNATURE		WORKSHEET COMPLETED BY	1			TITLE	TUSE	

1

### SAMPLE CASE 4

### MULTIPLE COUNTS - SINGLE CRIMINAL EVENT

OFFENDER'S NAME: J B	DOCKET NO: 00000004
DATE OF BIRTH: 01/26/65	DATE OF PLEA/VERDICT: 06/18/86
SEX: Male	DISPOSITION TYPE: Jury Trial
RACE: Black	JURISDICTION: Baltimore City
DATE OF OFFENSES: 12/03/85	CONVICTED COUNTS: Robbery with a Deadly Weapon 27/488
	Use of a Handgun in the Commission of Crime 27/36B(d)
	Possession of Marijuana 27/287

#### OFFENSE DESCRIPTION:

On 12/03/85, the victim and a friend had left a restaurant and were walking toward their car when they were approached by a lone, black male. The defendant grabbed the victim and pushed him against a After producing a small handgun, he demanded and received the car. victim's wallet. The defendant then fled on foot. A few minutes later, the victim's friend observed a passing patrol car and yelled for help. During a search of the surrounding area, the victim identified a man walking across a vacant lot as his assailant. As the patrol car approached, the defendant threw an object and began to run. The defendant was apprehended by another police unit circling the area, at which time a small glassine bag containing marijuana was found on his person. A search for the thrown object produced a 25 caliber automatic pistol. The victim was subsequently transported to a nearby hospital where he received treatment for a sprained wrist. On 06/18/82, a jury found the defendant guilty of Robbery with a Deadly Weapon, Use of a Handgun in the Commission of a Felony, and Possession of Marijuana.

#### OFFENDER'S PRIOR RECORD:

JUVENILE:

Date	Offense	Disposition
10/03/81	Malicious Destruction	Delinquent, 18 months probation.
11/20/82	Assault	Delinquent; probation continued.
ADULT:		
Date	Offense	Disposition

10/05/83	Theft unde	er \$300.00	18 months	suspended;	3
			vears pi	obation.	

ev. 7/87)

Offender was placed on three years adult probation in 1983 for Theft under \$300.00 and was under supervision at the time he committed the instant offense.

### COMPUTATION OF OFFENSE AND OFFENDER SCORES ROBBERY WITH A DEADLY WEAPON 27/488

### OFFENSE SCORE:

A.	Seriousness Category of Instant Offense	
	As shown in Appendix A, Robbery with a Deadly Weapon is a Category III Offense.	5 points
в.	Victim Injury	
	Victim suffered a sprained wrist.	l points
С.	Weapon Usage	
	A handgun was used.	2 points
D.	Special Vulnerability of Victim	
	Victim over 10 and under 60 years old and not mentally nor physically handicapped	0 points
	TOTAL OFFENSE SCORE	8 points

### OFFENDER SCORE:

A. Relationship to CJS When Instant Offense Occurred

Offender was on probation for Theft under \$300.00 at the time he committed the instant offenses.

1 point

B. Juvenile Delinquency

Offender has been found delinquent twice, once for Malicious Destruction and once for Assault. 1 point

C. Prior Adult Criminal Record

Step I - Theft under \$300.00 - Seriousness Category VII

E-15

SAMPLE CASE 4 (Continued) The number of prior convictions according to Seriousness Category are: SERIOUSNESS NUMBER OF PRIOR CATEGORY CONVICTIONS I 0 II 0 III 0 IV 0 V 0 VT 0 VII 1 Step II - Since the offender's only adult conviction was in Seriousness Category VII, refer to the block in Appendix Table B.1 which indicates one Seriousness Category VII conviction. This block identifies the record as "Minor". Step III - An offender with a minor record receives 1 point 1 point Prior Adult Parole/Probation Violations D. None. 0 points

### TOTAL OFFENDER SCORE 3 points

### GUIDELINES RANGE FOR THE ROBBERY WITH A DEADLY WEAPON

An examination of Appendix Table C.la or C.lb shows the recommended range for an offense score of 8 and an offender score of 3 is 7Y-13Y.

### COMPUTATION OF OFFENSE AND OFFENDER SCORES USE OF HANDGUN IN COMMISSION OF A FELONY

### OFFENSE SCORE:

AMD

Since this offense is the same seriousness category as the Robbery with a Deadly Weapon and was part of the same criminal event, the offense score is the same, 8.

Rev. 7/87)

E-16

### OFFENDER SCORE:

The offender score is also the same as for the Robbery with a Deadly Weapon, 3.

### GUIDELINES RANGE FOR USE OF A HANDGUN IN THE COMMISSION OF A FELONY

Since the offense and offender scores are 8 and 3 respectively, the recommended guideline range for the handgun conviction is 7Y-13Y.

### COMPUTATION OF OFFENSE AND OFFENDER SCORES POSSESSION OF MARIJUANA 27/286

#### OFFENSE SCORE:

There is no offense score for drug offenses.

#### OFFENDER SCORE:

The offender score is 3, the same as in the Robbery with a Deadly Weapon and Use of a Handgun in the Commission of A Felony.

### TOTAL OFFENDER SCORE 3 points

### GUIDELINES RANGE FOR THE POSSESSION OF MARIJUANA

An examination of Appendix Table C.2a or C.2b shows the recommended range for an offender score of 3 is P-1M.

#### OVERALL GUIDELINES RANGE FOR THE SENTENCING EVENT

Following the procedure as defined on Page 16 for determining the guidelines for multiple counts from same criminal event, the overall recommended range is the highest of the recommended ranges, <u>i.e.</u>, 7Y-13Y.

Criminal Event	Offense	Guidelines Range
1	Robbery with a Deadly Weapon	7-13 years
1	Use of a Handgun in the Commission of a Felony	7-13-years
1	Poscession of Marijuana	P-1month 7-13 years

.

MARY	SENTE	NCING	OFFENDER N	AME (Last,			First,	liddle)	Male		Black W	/hite Hispanic	Other	BIRTHDATE	1	UL	RISDICTION
GUIDE	the second second second	11900 Contract of Document	r	В			J		0	2	$\bigcirc$	2 3	4	0 1 2 6	3 6	1	24
PSI Ores 2 AT THIS SENTENCI NUMBER (	CONVICT		3 8 5 CRIMINAL EVENTS 0 1	DATE OF SENTEN 022 WORKSHEE CRIMINAL E	3 8 T# _1	17 OF 2	1. Piea agreement	- state nature o	1	SITION T		(	2 Plea 3 Cou 4 Jury				E ONLY. DO NOT N SPACE BELOW
and the owner of the	ED OFFENSE T	ITLE						AOC CODE	MD. CODE, ART. &	SECTION	STAT. MAX		DOCKE	TNUMBER		ACT	
11	RDW							111	27/488.		20Y	000000	04			STA _	CON
2nd H	landgun Us	se in	Felony					1 1	27/36B(d	Ð)	20Y	000000	04			PRO	
3rd P	Possession	ı of l	Marijuan	a					27/287		14	000000	04			REST	-
OFFENS	SE SCORE(S)	Offense	e Against a I	Person Only)	0	FFENDE	R SCORE	QUIDELINES	ACTUAL SENT	ENCE		Imposed, si	uspended,	time served, proba	tion,	01	
	2nd Off 3rd 0		A. Seriousness				CJS When	RANGE				-		time served, proba munity service	-	02	
01	01 01	=	V - VII		- CONTRACTOR		Occurred Pending Cases	1st Offense 7Y TO	1st Convicted C	mense		Subsequent of	mender	1 Yes	2 No	USE	
03	03 03 05 05	=	IV III .			Court o	r Other Criminal Supervision	2nd Offense							-	SUS	
08	08 08	=			B. Juven	le Deline	luency	<u>_7¥</u> то	1							ACT	
	10 10		Victim injury				Than One Delinguency	13Y				*				CON	PRO
0	0 0		No Injury		<b>o</b> o	r over ag	e 25		2nd Convicted	Offense		Subsequent of	ottender	1 Yes	2 No	F1	
0	① 1		Injury, Non-F	ermanent		vo or Mo One Co	re Findings, No mmitment	3rd Offense	-							REST	_
2	2 2	=	Permanent I	njury or Death	2 = T	wo or Me	ore Commitments	A COMPANY OF A COMPANY OF A COMPANY								CS	
335		C	. Weapon Usa	90	C. Prior	Adult Cr	iminal Record										
0	0 0	=	No Weapon		0 =	None	()= Minor	OVERALL								SUS	
a		=	Firearm or E	er Than Firearm	5 =	Major	3 = Moderate	RANGE (For Multiple	3rd Convicted	Offense		Subsequent of	ffender	1 Yes	2 NO	ACT	
	69 6		and a subscription of the	mability of Victim	D. Prior	Adult Pa	role/Probation	Counts Only)								CON	_ PRO
0	0 0	=	No		Violat			7Y TO	1							FI	
1	1 1	=	Yes		@=	No	1 = Yes		1							REST	_
018	0 18	0	FFENSE SCO	RE (S)	0 3	OFFEN	IDER SCORE	<u>13Y</u>								CS	
DEADO		OFUT		TO FROM OU	DELINIEA	DANO			INSTITUTIONA	L/PARO	LE REC	OMMENDA	ION/A	DDITIONAL II	NFO.	TLRANG	
REASU	NIF ACTUAL	SENIE	NCE DEPAR	TS FROM GUI	DELINES	HANG			a dibin documento do la filma de 7 de			3					GF
																TOTALS	
																TOTALN	
																TF1	
																REST	-
																TCS	
																	-
																TOUTI	-
									L	J				P.A.	.	TOUT2	
	SENTE	NCING JUI	DGE			SIGNATUR	E		WORKSHEET COMPL	LETED BY					TITLE	TUSE	

.

### SAMPLE CASE 5

OFFENSE AGAINST A PERSON - MULTIPLE OFFENSES FROM CATEGORIES I AND II - SINGLE CRIMINAL EVENT

OFFENDER'S NAME: B D	DOCKET NO: 0000005
DATE OF BIRTH: 10/04/63	DATE OF PLEA/VERDICT: 09/10/86
SEX: Male	DISPOSITION TYPE: Jury Trial
RACE: White	JURISDICTION: Baltimore City
DATE OF OFFENSES: 11/22/85	COLJICTED COUNT: First Degree Rape 27/462
	Assault with Intent to Murder 27/12
	Kidnapping 27/337
	Use of a Handgun in Commission of
	a Felony 27/36B(d)

OFFENSE DESCRIPTION:

On 11/22/85, the victim was walking to her car on a shopping center parking lot when two men approached in a car. One of the men jumped out of the car, grabbed her and pushed her into the car. She was driven to a secluded area where she was raped by both men and shot. After managing to crawl to a road she was noticed by a passing motorist and taken to a nearby hospital. The victim suffered permanent damage to her right kidney. Using her description of the defendant and the license number of the car, police were able to arrest the defendant the following day. On 09/10/86, a jury found him guilty of First Degree Rape, Assault with Intent to Murder, Kidnapping and Use of a Handgun in the Commission of a Felony.

#### OFFENDER'S PRIOR RECORD:

JUVENILE:

Date	Offense	Disposition
07/10/74	Unauthorized Use	Delinquent; l year probation
08/05/79	Shoplifting	Delinquent; l year probation
08/26/80	Assault with Intent Rob	Delinquent; committed to Boys Village for 2 months.

### ADULT:

Of:	fense		]	Dispositi	on
Driving Assault		Intoxicated	1	year	suspended;
	Driving		Driving While Intoxicated	Driving While Intoxicated 6 Assault 1	Driving While Intoxicated 6 months

The offender had recently completed his probation for the Assault conviction (03/01/84).

### COMPUTATION OF OFFENSE AND OFFENDER SCORES FIRST DEGREE RAPE 27/462

### OFFENSE SCORE:

Α.	Seriousness Category of Instant Offense	
	As shown in Appendix A, First Degree Rape is a Category I Offense.	10 points
в.	Victim Injury	
	Permanent injury resulting from gunshot wounds	2 points
С.	Weapon Usage	
	Handgun was used.	2 points
D.	Special Vulnerability of Victim	
	Victim over 10 and under 60 years old and not mentally nor physically	
	handicapped	0 points
	TOTAL OFFENSE SCORE	14 points

### OFFENDER SCORE:

NOTE: The offender score will be same for each offense.

SAMPLE	CASE	5	(Continued)
--------	------	---	-------------

1 5

### A. Relationship to CJS When Instant Offense Occurred

Defendant was not under any supervision at the time of the offense 0 points

### B. Juvenile Delinquency

5

Offender had 3 findings and 1 commitment 1 point

C. Prior Adult Criminal Record

Step I - Assault - Category V Driving While Intoxicated - Category VII

The number of prior convictions according to Seriousness Category are:

SERIOUSNESS	NUMBER OF PRIOR
CATEGORY	CONVICTIONS
I	0
II	0
III	0
IV	0
V	1
VI	0
VII.	1

Step II - Since the offender's most serious prior conviction was in Seriousness Category V, refer to the block in Appendix Table B.l which indicates one Seriousness Category V conviction. This block identifies the record as "Minor".

Step III - An offender with a minor record receives 1 point 1 point

D. Prior Adult Parole/Probation Violations

0 points

TOTAL OFFENDER SCORE 2 points

CIME.

None.

### GUIDELINES RANGE FOR FIRST DEGREE RAPE

An examination of Appendix Table C.la or C.lb shows that the recommended range for an offense score of 14 and an offender score of 2 is 28Y-L.

### COMPUTATION OF OFFENSE AND OFFENDER SCORES ASSAULT WITH INTENT TO MURDER 27/12

OFFENSE SCORE:

Α.	Seriousness	Category	of	Instant	Offense
17.0	Derroubliebb	oucegory	01	Tupcane	OTTEND

	As shown in Appendix A, Assault with Intent to Murder is a Category III Offense.	5 points
Β.	Victim Injury	
	Permanent injury resulting from gunshot wounds.	2 points
с.	Weapon Usage	
	Handgun was used.	2 points
D.	Special Vulnerability of Victim	
	Victim over 10 and under 60 years old and not mentally nor physically	
	handicapped.	0 points
	TOTAL OFFENSE SCORE	9 points

### OFFENDER SCORE:

The offender score is the same for all offenses at this sentencing event, 2.

### GUIDELINES RANGE FOR ASSAULT WITH INTENT TO MURDER

An examination of Appendix Table C.la or C.lb shows that the recommended range for an offense score of 9 and an offender score of 2 is 8Y-15Y.

### COMPUTATION OF OFFENSE AND OFFENDER SCORES KIDNAPPING, 27/337

### OFFENSE SCORE:

A. Seriousness Category of Instant Offense As shown in Appendix A, Kidnapping is a Category II Offense. 8 points Β. Victim Injury Permanent injury resulting from gunshot wound. 2 points C. Weapon Usage Handgun was used. 2 points D. Special Vulnerability of Victim Victim over 10 and under 60 years old and not mentally nor physically handicapped. 0 points TOTAL OFFENSE SCORE 12 points

#### OFFENDER SCORE:

The offender score is the same for all offenses at this sentencing event, 2.

#### GUIDELINES RANGE FOR KIDNAPPING

An examination of Appendix Table C.la or C.lb shows that the recommended range for an offense score of 12 and an offender score of 2 is 18Y-30Y.

COMPUTATION OF OFFENSE AND OFFENDER SCORE USE OF HANDGUN IN COMMISSION OF A FELONY, 27/36B(d)

NOTE: Because this is the fourth convicted offense, a separate worksheet must be used even though all offenses are from one criminal event.

### OFFENSE SCORE:

### A. Seriousness Category of Instant Offense

As shown in Appendix A, Handgun Used in the Commission of a Felony is a Category III Offense.

### B. Victim Injury

Permanent injury resulting from gunshot 2 points

### C. Weapon Usage

Handgun was used. 2 points

### D. Special Vulnerability of Victim

Victim over 10 and under 60 years old and not mentally nor physically handicapped.

TOTAL OFFENSE SCORE 9 points

5 points

0 points

#### OFFENDER SCORE:

The offender score is the same for all offenses at this sentencing event, 2.

#### GUIDELINES RANGE FOR HANDGUN VIOLATION

An examination of Appendix Table C.la or C.lb shows that the recommended range for an offense score of 9 and an offender score of 2 is 8Y-15Y.

### OVERALL GUIDELINES RANGE FOR THE SENTENCING EVENT

Because two of the offenses in this criminal event were in either Seriousness Category I (First Degree Rape) or Seriousness Category II (Kidnapping), the overall recommended guideline range is determined by adding together the respective lower and upper limits of the ranges of each Category I or II conviction. Following this procedure, the overall recommended sentencing range would be 46 years (28 years plus 18 years) to Life plus 30 years (Life plus 30 years).

## Offense

### Guideline Range

Rape	28Y-Life
AWI Murder	8Y-15Y
Kidnapping	18Y-30Y
Use of Findgun	8Y-15Y
	46Y-Life plus 30Y

×.

100

MARYL	SENTENCING	OFFENDER NAME	(Last,		First,	ddle)	Male Fen	ale Black V	hite Hispanic	Other BIRTHDATE		JURISDICTION
	S WORKSHEET		D		В			1	2 3	4 100	4 6	24
PSI	DATE OF OFFENSE	DAT	TE OF SENTEN	CING			DISPOSITIO	NTYPE				
OYes 2 AT THIS SENTENCIN NUMBER OF	G OFFENSES	2 8 5 C CRIMINAL EVENTS 0 1	0 3 0 WORKSHEE CRIMINALE		1. Plea agreement	- state nature o	t		3	Plea, no agreemen Court trial ) Jury trial	t W	OC USE ONLY. DO N RITE IN SPACE BELC
CONVICTE	D OFFENSE TITLE	1-1-1	I			AOC CODE	MD. CODE, ART. & SECTIO	IN STAT. MAX		OCKET NUMBER		US
1	pe 1 <sup>0</sup> ,						27/462 .	Life	0000000	75	· .	CT TACON
2nd AWJ	I/Murder						27/12	30Y	0000000	75	F	RORAN
3rd Kic	trapping	Ξ.					27/337	30Y	0000000	75	R	<sup>EST</sup> — S ————
OFFENSE	SCORE(S) (Offense	Against a Pers	on Only)	OFFEND	ER SCORE	GUIDELINES	ACTUAL SENTENCI	:	Imposed, susp	ended, time served, prob	ation, 0	۱
1st Off 2	nd Off 3rd Off A	A. Seriousness Cal	legory	A. Relationship		RANGE 1st Offense	1st Convicted Offen		Subsequent offe	n, community service	2 No 0	2
01	01 01 =	V - VII		~	or Pending Cases	_ <u>2.87</u> TO		50	Subsequent one	1165	_	SE
	03 03 = 05 05 =	IV III		1 = Court	or Other Criminal	Life						
	08 08 =	Ш		Justic B. Juvenile Delin	e Supervision	2nd Offense <u>8Y</u> TO	-					US
0	10 10 =	1		0 = Not More	e Than One	15Y						CT
	B	. Victim Injury		Finding of over a	of Delinquency		2nd Convicted Offer	160	Subsequent offe	ander 1 Yes		ON PRO
0	0 0 =	No Injury		B= Two or M	lore Findings, No	3rd Offense		100		1100 1103		
1	1 1 =	Injury, Non-Perm		and the second sec	ommitment	<u>_18У_</u> то	1				R	EST _
0	<u></u>	Permanent Injury . Weapon Usage	or Death	2 = Two or M C. Prior Adult C	Nore Commitments	<u>30Y</u>					C	5
0	0 0 =	No Weapon		0 = None	()= Minor	OVERALL	1				=	
1	1 1 =	Weapon Other Th	han Firearm	5 = Major	3 = Moderate	GUIDELINES RANGE		1071N	<u>i</u>		s	US
0	2 2 =	Firearm or Explo	sive		942 ( 1981,1987,284,285,185)	(For Multiple	3rd Convicted Offer	50	Subsequent offe	inder 1 Yes	2 NO A	CT
~	0	. Special Vulnerabil	ity of Victim	D. Prior Adult P Violations	arole/Probation	Counts Only)	-				c	ON PRO
0	0 0 =	No		()= No	1 = Yes	<u>46Y</u> то					F	·
		Yes				L+30Y					R	EST _
1 4	0:9 1 2 0	FFENSE SCORE	(5)	012 OFFE	NDER SCORE						C	s
							INSTITUTIONAL/PA		OMMENDATI	ONIADDITIONAL	INFO 1	RANGE
REASON	IF ACTUAL SENTER	NCE DEPARTS	FROM GUI	DELINES RANG	λE		INSTITUTIONALIPA	NULE NEU	OMMENDATI	UNIADDITIONAL	INFU. T	URANGE
											T	OTALI
											TC	DTALS
											TC	DTALN
											TF	F1
											R	EST
											TO	cs
											TF	RANGE 🗕
											тс	DUT1
							М	Δ				OUT2
	SENTENCING JUD	DGE		SIGNATL	IRE		WORKSHEET COMPLETED	A By		P.A.	TITLE	USE <u> </u>

E-27

.

COPIES: White-Judge; Blue-AOC; Green-Attach to Commitment or Probation | de Yellow-File; Pink-Prosecution; Gold-Defense

GUIDELI				OTTERDER	D			B		-,	1 2	1 1	2 3 4 1001	4 61	3 2	4
PSI Oves 2 1 AT THIS SENTENCING NUMBER OF	No 1 CO	1 NVICTED FENSES		2 8 5 CRIMINAL EVENTS	DATE OF SENTEN	10 8	<u>16</u> 1	. Plea agreement	-state nat	ure o	DISPOSITION		2 Plea, no agreement 3 Court trial 4 Jury trial		AOC USE C WRITE IN S	ONLY. DO NOT.
CONVICTER	DOFFEN	ISE TITLE	E	101 -1					AOC CO	DE	MD. CODE, ART. & SECTION	STAT. MAX.	DOCKET NUMBER		SUS _	
1st Hand	laun I	lsed i	in c	ommissi	on of a Fe	elony			1	I.	27/36B(d)	20Y	00000005		STA	CON
2nd	0					v.									PRO	RAN -
		_													FI -	
3rd									1	ĩ					REST -	-
OFFENSE	SCOR	E(S) (Off	fense	Against a	Person Only)	OF	FENDER	SCORE	GUIDELI	INES	ACTUAL CENTENCE		Imposed, suspended, time served, proba		01	
the second s	nd Off	3rd Off	All and the second s	Seriousnes		A. Relatio	onship to	CJS When	RANG	ie .	ACTUAL SENTENCE	-	fine, restitution, community service		02 _	
01	01 03	01 03		v - vii iv				Occurred Pending Cases	1st Offe 8Y 15Y	TO	1st Convicted Offense		Subsequent offender 1 Yes	2 No	USE _	
05	05	05	=	ш	2	1 =		Other Criminal						ſ	SUS	
08	08	08	=	H		B. Juvenil		Supervision uency	2nd Offe	TO	-					
10	10	10	=	1		0 = No	ot More T	han One		_ 10					ACT _	
				Victim Injur	У	Fil	over age	Delinquency 25		-	2nd Convicted Offens	e	Subsequent offender 1 Yes	2 NO		PR0
0	0	0		No Injury		()= Tw	o or Moi	e Findings, No	3rd Offe	กรอ				-	FI	
1	1	1		Injury, Non-I	Permanent Injury or Death			nmitment		TO						-
(2)	2	2		Weapon Usa	CHERENA COST CONSIGNATION			re Commitments minal Record							cs _	
0	0	0		No Weapon		0 = N		D= Minor	OVER/					ŀ		
1	1	1	=	Weapon Oth	er Than Firearm	5 = N	Aaior	3 = Moderate	RANG		3rd Convicted Offense				SUS	
Q	2	2	and the second division of the second divisio	Firearm or E					(For Mul Counts (		3rd Convicted Offense	9	Subsequent offender 1 Yes	2 No	ACT _	
6					erability of Victim	D. Prior A Violati		ole/Probation						- 1	CON	PRO
O	0	0		No		()= I	NO	1 = Yes	46Y	то					FI	
	<u> </u>		7	Yes					L+30Y						REST	- 1
0 9	i -		OF	FENSE SCO	DRE (S)	0 2	OFFEN	DER SCORE	-						CS _	
DEACON	IE ACT		AITEN	CE DEDAG	TS FROM GUI	DELINES	DANCE				INSTITUTIONAL/PAR	OLE RECO	MMENDATION/ADDITIONAL I	NEO	TURANGE	
REASON	IF ACT	UAL JE	NIEN	ICE DEFAI	113 FROM GOI	DELINES	NANGE	•				ж. С				
															TOTALI	
														1	TOTALS	In cash cash want proto
														- 1	TOTALN	
														1	REST _	
															and the second se	-
															TCS	
																-
											M A		I		TOUT2	
	\$	ENTENCIN	IG JUD	GE		3	IGNATUR	E			WORKSHEET COMPLETED BY		I	TITLE	TUSE	
(	-				C	OPIES: White	Judge; Bli	ue-AOC; Green-Attax	imm	tment	or Probation Order; Yellow-File	; Pink-Prosecu	rtion; Gold-Defense	-0	(F	Rev. 7/87)

Ň

## SAMPLE CASE 6

MULTIPLE OFFENSES - MULTIPLE CRIMINAL EVENTS

OFFENDER'S NAME: R DOCKET NO: 00000006 DATE OF BIRTH: 01/10/64 DATE OF PLEA/VERDICT: 01/05/86 SEX: Male **DISPOSITION TYPE:** Binding Plea RACE: White Agreement as to Sentence Maximum DATE OF OFFENSES: 05/10/85 JURISDICTION: Harford County 05/25/85 CONVICTED COUNT: Distribution of PCP 27/286 Assault with Intent to Murder 27/12

### OFFENSE DESCRIPTION:

On 05/10/85, as part of a narcotics investigation, two undercover policemen purchased from the defendant a 2-oz. vial of a liquid which was later identified as PCP. The defendant was arrested and released on \$10,000.00 bond.

On 05/25/85, police responded to a report of a shooting in a shopping center parking lot. Police evere informed by the victim that he was talking about buying some "grass" with a man he had met in a bar. An argument ensued and the man pulled out a gun and shot the victim, hitting him in the right arm. The victim was treated in a hospital for a flesh wound and released. Based on the information provided by the victim and witnesses at the bar, a warrant was obtained and the defendant was arrested at his home.

On 01/05/86, the defendant pled guilty to one count of Distribution of PCP 27/286 and one count of Assault with Intent to Murder 27/12.

### OFFENDER'S PRIOR RECORD:

#### JUVENILE:

Date	A	
Daci		

Offense

Disposition

03/23/80 Possession of Marijuana Delinguent; 1 year probation

SAMPLE	CASE	6	(Continued)
			A CALL STATE OF CONTRACT OF CALL

ADULT:

Date	Offense	Disposition
09/12/82	Possession of Cocaine Carrying a Handgun	4 years suspended 1 year suspended; 2 years probation

Offender was placed on 2 years adult probation in 1982. He successfully completed his probationary period.

### COMPUTATION OF OFFENSE AND OFFENDER SCORES DISTRIBUTION OF PCP 27/286

### OFFENSE SCORE:

There is no offense score for drug offenses.

offender score:

NOTE: The offender score used in computing guidelines for multiple criminal events is the same for each event. The highest score for any event at the time of this sentencing should be used throughout.

### OFFENDER SCORE:

Defendant was not under any supervision at the time of the instant offense.	0 points
Juvenile Delinquency	
Offender was found delinquent for Possession of Marijuana	0 points
Prior Adult Criminal Record	

The number of prior convictions according to Seriousness Category are:

SERIOUSNESS CATEGORY	NUMBER OF PRIOR CONVICTIONS
1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	
I	0
II	0
III	0
IV	0
v	1
VI	0
VII	1
conviction was V, refer to th	ender's most serious adult s in Seriousness Category he block in Appendix Table cates one Seriousness

conviction was in Seriousness Category V, refer to the block in Appendix Table B.l which indicates one Seriousness Category V conviction. This block identifies the record as "Minor".

Step III - An offender with a minor record receives 1 point

1 point

D. Prior Adult Parole/Probation Violations

None.

Step

0 points

TOTAL OFFENSE SCORE 1 point

### GUIDELINES RANGE FOR DISTRIBUTION OF PCP

4

An examination of Appendix Table C.2a or C.2b shows that the recommended range for Distribution of PCP with an offender score of 1 point is 1Y-3Y.

### COMPUTATION OF OFFENSE AND OFFENDER SCORES ASSAULT WITH INTENT TO MURDER 27/12

NOTE: Even though there were only two convicted offenses at this sentencing, a second worksheet must be used because each convicted offense was part of a separate criminal event.

### OFFENSE SCORE

Seriousness Category of Instant Offense	
As shown in Appendix A, Assault with Intent to Murder is a Category III Offense.	5 points
Victim Injury	
Victim was shot but not permanently injured.	l point
Weapon Usage	
Firearm was used.	2 points
Special Vulnerability of Victim	
Victim over 10 and under 60 years old and not mentally nor physically	
handicapped.	0 points
TOTAL OFFENSE SCORE	8 points

### OFFENSE SCORE:

The offender score is the same for all criminal events at this sentencing event, 1.

### GUIDELINES RANGE FOR ASSAULT WITH INTENT TO MURDER

An examination of Appendix Table C.la or C.lb shows that the recommended range for an offense score of 8 and an offender score of 1 is 5Y-10Y.

### OVERALL GUIDELINES RANGE FOR THE SENTENCING EVENT

The overall guideline range for the sentencing event according to the procedure defined on page would be to add the upper ranges and to add the lower ranges, resulting in a cumulative range of 6-13 years (1 year plus 5 years and 3 years plus 10 years).

Criminal Event	Offense	Guideline Range
1	Distribution of PCP 27/286	1-3 years
2	Assault with Intent to Murder 27/12	$\frac{5-10 \text{ years}}{6-13 \text{ years}}$

lev. 7/87)

MARY	SENTENC	ING OFFEND	ER NAME (Last.		First,	Aiddle)		dale Female	Black	White Hisp	nic Othe	BIRTHDATE			JURISDICTION
GUIDE	S WORKSH	Contraction of the second s	W		R			1 2	1	0	4	0 10	16 0	4	12
PSI	DATE OF OFFEN	ISE	DATE OF SENTE	NCING			DIS	POSITION T	YPE						
I Yes ON	0.5	108	5 1 2 1	2 8 16							2 P	lea, no agreem	ent		SE ONLY. DO NOT
AT THIS	O 15 CONVICTED	CRIMIN	AL WORKSHEE		1.Plea agreement	-state nature o agreement		ontonoo				ourt trial			
SENTENCING		EVENT	CRIMINAL	EVENT# 7		ugreement	40 10 51	encence			-	ury trial		INC	
NUMBER OF.	02	0	2		maximum							ary criat		sus	
CONVICTED	OFFENSE TITLE	E .				AOC CODE	MD. CODE, ART	. & SECTION	STAT. M/	IX.	DOC	KET NUMBER	_	ACT	
1st Die	tribution	of PCP													CON
-	01 00 00 0000	09 101					27/286		20Y	000	00006				
2nd														1 Contraction	BAN
														FI	
3rd														REST	-
														CS	
OFFENSE	SCORE(S) (Off	ense Agains	t a Person Only)	+0	ER SCORE	GUIDELINES	ACTUAL SE	NTENCE		Impos	d, suspend	ed, time served, p ommunity service	obation,	01	
1st Off 2n	d Off 3rd Off	A. Serious	ness Category	A. Relationship Instant Count	to CJS When	RANGE 1st Offense	1st Convicte	d Offense			ent offende	and the second se		02	
01 0	01 01	= V - VII		0	or Pending Cases	<u>17</u> то		a ononoo		Canada	un ununuu			USE	
03 (	03 03	= IV			rending cases	31									
05 0	05 05	= 111			or Other Criminal e Supervision	2nd Offense	4							SUS	
TAPA N	80 80	= 11		B. Juvenile Delir		TO	1							a set Sec	
10	10 10	=		@= Not More	Than One									ACT	
		B. Victim I	njury	Finding of over a	of Delinquency		2nd Convict	ad Offense		Subeag	ent offende	r 1 Ye	s 2 No	CON	_ PHO
0	0 0	= No Injur	Y	1 = Two or M	ore Findings, No	3rd Offense	2 in convict	64 Ononse		Subseq		1 10	5 2 140	-	
1	1 1		on-Permanent	or One C	ommitment	то	1							REST	-
2	2 2		ant Injury or Death		fore Commitments									CS	
0	0 0	C. Weapon = No Wea	5	C. Prior Adult C		OVERALL	1							-	
1	1 1	100 million (100 m	Other Than Firearm	0 = None	() = Minor	GUIDELINES RANGE								SUS	
2	2 2	- 19 S	or Explosive	5 = Major	3 = Moderate	(For Multiple	3rd Convicte	ed Offense		Subsequ	ent offende	r 1 Ye	es 2 No	ACT	
			unerability of Victim		arole/Probation	Counts Only)								CON	PRO
0	0 0	= No		Violations		6Y	1							FI	
1	1 1	= Yes		0= No	1 = Yes	TO								REST	
		1				<u>13Y</u>								CS	
	_i	OFFENSE	SCORE (S)	0 1 OFFE	NDER SCORE	-								TLRAN	
REASON		NTENCE DE	PARTS FROM GU	IDELINES BANG	E		INSTITUTIO	NAL/PARC	LE RE	COMMEN	DATION	ADDITIONA	L INFO.	TURAN	
I ILLIGOIN I	A NOTONE DE		Anto Thom do	IDELINES HARC											
1															
							1							TOTAL	
														TOTAL	N
							1							TF1	_
														REST	-
														TCS	
														TRANC	E _
											-1/			TOUT	-
							-		D					TOUT2	
							L		D			Jud	n	TUSE	
	SENTENCIN	IG JUDGE		SIGNATU	IRE		WORKSHEET CO	DMPLETED BY					TITLE		

1. 10

UIDELINES WORKSHEET	R		O 2	1 0	3 4 0 1 1 0 6	4 12
DATE OF OFFENSE       Yes     ONO     0     15     2     5     8     5     0     6     2       THIS     CONVICTED     CRIMINAL     WORKSHEI       VTENCING     OFFENSES     EVENTS     CRIMINAL       BBER OF:     0     2     0     2	10 8 6 Plea agreement	state nature of agreemen	<b>DISPOSITION</b> It as to senten		2 Plea, no agreement 3 Court trial 4 Jury trial	AOC USE ONLY. DO N WRITE IN SPACE BEL
IVICTED OFFENSE TITLE	1	AOC CODE	MD. CODE, ART. & SECTION	STAT. MAX.	DOCKET NUMBER	sus
AWI Murder			27/12 .	30Y	00000006	ACT STACON
						PRORAN
						REST
FENSE SCORE(S) (Offense Against a Person Only) Off 2nd Off 3rd Off A. Seriousness Category	OFFENDER SCORE A. Relationship to CJS When	GUIDELINES RANGE	ACTUAL SENTENCE		Imposed, suspended, time served, probation, fine, restitution, community service	01
01 01 = V - VII 03 03 = IV 05 05 = III	Instant Count Occurred () = None or Pending Cases 1 = Court or Other Criminal Justice Supervision	$ \begin{array}{r} 1 \text{ st Ollense} \\ \underline{5Y} \\ \underline{70Y} \\ \hline 10Y \\ \hline 2 \text{nd Offense} \\ \end{array} $	1st Convicted Offense		Subsequent offender 1 Yes 2 No	02 USE SUS
08 08 = II 10 10 = I B. Victim Injury 0 0 = No Injury 1 1 = Injury, Non-Permanent	B. Juvenile Delinquency = Not More Than One Finding of Delinquency or over age 25 1 = Two or More Findings, No or One Commitment	TO TO 3rd Offense	2nd Convicted Offens	e	Subsequent offender 1 Yes 2 No	ACT
2 2 = Permanent Injury or Death C. Weapon Usage 0 0 = No Weapon 1 1 = Weapon Other Than Firearm	2 = Two or More Commitments C. Prior Adult Criminal Record 0 = None = Minor	OVERALL GUIDELINES RANGE				cs
2     2     =     Firearm or Explosive       D. Special Vulnerability of Victim       0     0     =       1     1     =	5 = Major 3 = Moderate	(For Multiple Counts Only)	3rd Convicted Offens	e [	Subsequent offender 1 Yes 2 No	CON PRO
	0 1 OFFENDER SCORE	<u>13Y</u>				REST
ASON IF ACTUAL SENTENCE DEPARTS FROM GU	IDELINES RANGE		INSTITUTIONAL/PAR	OLE RECO	MMENDATION/ADDITIONAL INFO.	TURANGE TURANGE TOTALI TOTALS
~						TOTALN
SENTENCING JUDGE	SIGNATURE		L D		Judge	TOUT1 TOUT2 TUSE

E-34



SAMPLE CASE 7

### MULTIPLE OFFENSES FROM SINGLE AND MULTIPLE CRIMINAL EVENTS

OFFENDER'S NAME: M K DATE OF BIRTH: 06/10/68 SEX: Male RACE: Black DATE OF OFFENSES: 09/10/85 12/09/85 DOCKET NO: 0000007 DATE OF PLEA/VERDICT: 02/20/86 DISPOSITION TYPE: Binding Plea Agreement as to Actual Sentence JURISDICTION: Baltimore City CONVICTED COUNT: Robbery with a Deadly Weapon 27/488 Robbery 27/486 Assault CL

OFFENSE DESCRIPTION:

On 09/10/85, a 32-year old male, answering the door in his apartment, was confronted by a man wielding a revolver and demanding money. The victim relinquished his wallet, but the assailant forced the victim into the bedroom and tied this hands and feet with his own neckties. After ransacking the bedroom, the gunman left. As soon as he could free himself, the victim called police and reported the incident.

On 12/09/85, police responded to a call at an apartment house. Upon arriving, they were given custody of a man who, according to a security guard, had forced his way into a woman's apartment and tried to attack her. In questioning the victim, police learned that she had opened the door thinking her boyfriend had arrived, but a strange man had burst in. The victim stated that she was instructed to give him her money because he had a gun in his pocket and would use it. After handing over her purse, she was pushed into the bedroom and told to get undressed. She was resisting when her boyfriend appeared. As the boyfriend and the assailant struggled, she went to the phone and summoned security who helped to hold the defendant. A starter pistol was found in his pocket.

On 02/20/86, the defendant pled guilty to Robbery with a Deadly Weapon from the first event and Robbery and Assault from the second event.

.,

OFFENDER'S PRIOR CRIMINAL RECORD:

- NOTE: The offender score used in computing guidelines for multiple criminal events is the same for each event. The highest score for any event at the time of this sentencing should be used throughout.
- JUVENILE: No juvenile record was found for the name and birthdate provided.

ADULT:

Date	Offense	Disposition					
11/30/85	Theft under \$300	PBJ, 1 year probation					

Offender is currently on probation.

COMPUTATION OF OFFENSE AND OFFENDER SCORES ROBBERY WITH A DEADLY WEAPON 27/488 - CRIMINAL EVENT 1

### OFFENSE SCORE:

A. Seriousness Category of Instant Offense

As shown in Appendix A, Robbery with a Deadly Weapon is a Category III Offense. 5 points

B. Victim Injury

No injury.

C. Weapon Usage

Handgun was used.

D. Special Vulnerability of Victim

Victim over 10 and under 60 years old and not mentally nor physically handicapped.

TOTAL OFFENSE SCORE 7 points

0 points

2 points

0 points

TWE

OFFENDER SCORE:

A. Relationship to CJS When Instant Offense Occurred

The offender was on probation at the time of the second criminal event.

B. Juvenile Delinquency

No record found.

0 points

l point

### C. Prior Adult Criminal Record

Step I - theft under \$300 - Category VII

The number of prior convictions according to Seriousness Category are:

SERIOUSNESS	NUMBER OF PRIOR
CATEGORY	CONVICTIONS
I	0
II	0
III	0
IV	0
v	0
VI	0
· VII	1

Step II - Since the only conviction is in Seriousness Category VII, refer to the block in Appendix Table B.1 which indicates one Seriousness Category VII conviction. This block identifies the record as "Minor".

Step III - An offender with a minor record receives 1 point

1 point

### D. Prior Adult Parole/Probation Violations

The offender does not get a point here because he had no violations except for the offenses of this sentencing event. He has already been penalized in "A" for committing these offenses while under supervision.

0 points

TOTAL OFFENDER SCORE 2 points

### GUIDELINES RANGE FOR ROBBERY WITH A DEADLY WEAPON OF CRIMINAL EVENT 1

An examination of Appendix Table C.la or C.lb shows that the recommended range for an offense score of 7 and an offender score of 2 is 5Y-9Y.

### COMPUTATION OF OFFENSE AND OFFENDER SCORES ROBBERY 27/486 - CRIMINAL EVENT 2

NOTE: A second worksheet must be used for this separate criminal event.

### OFFENSE SCORE:

Α.	Seriousness Category of Instant Offense	
	As shown in Appendix A, Robbery is a Category IV Offense.	3 points
в.	Victim Injury	8
	No injury.	O points
C.	Weapon Usage	
	A starter pistol was used; therefore, l point is given for a weapon other than a firearm.	l point
D.	Special Vulnerability of Victim	
	Victim over 10 and under 60 years old and not mentally nor physically handicapped.	0 points
	TOTAL OFFENSE SCORE	4 points

### OFFENDER SCORE:

The offender score is the same for all offenses in this sentencing event, 2.

ev. 7/87)

### GUIDELINES RANGE FOR ROBBERY CRIMINAL EVENT 2

An examination of Appendix Table C.la or C.lb shows that the recommended range for an offense score of 4 and an offender score of 2 is 1Y-5Y.

### COMPUTATION OF OFFENSE AND OFFENDER SCORES ASSAULT -CRIMINAL EVENT 2

### OFFENSE SCORE:

	Seriousness Category of Instant Offense	
	As shown in Appendix A, Assault is a Category V offense.	l point
•	Victim Injury	
	No injury.	0 points
	Weapon Usage	
	A starter pistol was used; therefore, l point is given for a weapon other than a firearm.	l point
•	Special Vulnerability of Victim	
	Victim over 10 and under 60 years old and not mentally nor physically	
	handicapped.	0 points
	TOTAL OFFENSE SCORE	2 points

### OFFENDER SCORE:

The offender score is the same for all offenses in this sentencing event, 2.

### GUIDELINES RANGE FOR ASSAULT - CRIMINAL EVENT 2

An examination of Appendix Table C.la or C.lb shows that the recommended range for an offense score of 2 and an offender score is 2 is P-18M.

### OVERALL GUIDELINES RANGE FOR THE SENTENCING EVENT

To determine the overall guideline range for the sentencing event, add the respective lower and upper limits of the guideline ranges for each criminal event. These ranges are the highest upper and highest lower ranges from each event. (See Sample Case 4 and the explanation on page 16.) The overall guideline range in this instance would be 3.5 years (3 years plus 6 months) to 12 years (8 years plus 4 years):

Criminal Event	Offens	e			Guideline Range
1	Robbery wit	h a	a Deadly	Weapon	5-10 Years
2	Robbery				1-5 Years
2	Assault				P-18-Months
					6-15 Years

ev. 7/87)

MARY	SENTENCING	OFFENDER NAME (Last,		First.	fiddle)	Male		Black W	hite Hispanic	Other	BIRTHDATE		101	RISDICTION
GUIDE	S WORKSHEET	K		М		0	2	0	2 3	4	0 6 1 0	6	8	24
1 Yes 2N AT THIS SENTENCING NUMBER OF:	OFFENSES	DATE OF SENTEN       2     8       5     0       CRIMINAL EVENTS       0       2	11816	1.Plea agreement Binding			sition to		nce		, no agreement t trial trial	-		ONLY. DO NOT SPACE BELOW
Statistics in which it is a second of the	OFFENSE TITLE				AOC CODE	MD. CODE, ART. &	SECTION	STAT. MAX.		DOCKET	NUMBER		ACT	
	DW					27/488		20Y	00000	007			STA	CON
2nd					11.1							- 1	FI _	
3rd												- 1	REST .	-
		Against a Person Only) Seriousness Category	OFFEND	ER SCORE	GUIDELINES	ACTUAL SENT	ENCE		Imposed, su fine, restitu	uspended, tion, comm	time served, probat nunity service	tion,	01 .	
01 0	01 01 = V 03 03 = I	/ · VII	Instant Count	or Pending Cases	1st Offense 5Y_TO	1st Convicted C	Offense		Subsequent o	ffender	1 Yes	2 No	USE .	
5	05 05 = 11 05 05 = 11 08 08 = 11	n -		or Other Criminal e Supervision	<u>9Y</u> 2nd Offense	-							SUS .	
	10 10 = I		B. Juvenile Della = Not More Finding of		TO								ACT	PR0
0	0 0 0	Victim injury No injury Injury, Non-Permanent	or over a 1 = Two or M		3rd Offense	2nd Convicted	Offense		Subsequent of	offender	1 Yes	2 No	FI .	
2	2 2 = F	Permanent Injury or Death Weapon Usage	2542 54475454	lore Commitments	<sup>TO</sup>								cs .	_
0 1		No Weapon Weapon Other Than Firearm	0 = None 5 = Major	) = Minor 3 = Moderate	OVERALL GUIDELINES RANGE		~~~						sus .	
Ø	the second se	Firearm or Explosive Special Vulnerability of Victim	D. Prior Adult Pr	COL STREAM COLORADO	(For Multiple Counts Only)		Ottense		Subsequent o	ffender	1 Yes	2 No	CON	PRO
0		No Yes	Violations 0= No	1 = Yes	<u>6</u> У то								FI -	
0 7	_i OFI	FENSE SCORE (S)	0 2 OFFE	NDER SCORE	<u>15¥</u>								CS	
REASON	F ACTUAL SENTEN	CE DEPARTS FROM GUI	DELINES RANG	ìΕ	<u>k</u>	INSTITUTION	AL/PARO	LE RECO	OMMENDAT	ION/A	DDITIONAL IN	NFO.	TURANG	E
													TOTALI	
													TOTALN.	
													REST	-
												-	TRANGE	-
						G K					S.A.		TOUT1	
	SENTENCING JUDG	ie	SIGNATU	IRE		WORKSHEET COMP	LETED BY					TITLE	TUSE .	

GUIDELINES WORKSHEET	M		$\widehat{\Omega}_{2}$	Q	2 3 4	0 6 1 0 6	8 24
PSI DATE OF OFFENSE DATE OF SENTER			DISPOSITION	TYPE		0 0 1 0 0	0 21
1 Yes     ONO     1     2     0     9     8     5     1     1     1       AT THIS SENTENCING NUMBER OF:     CONVICTED OFFENSES     CRIMINAL EVENTS 0     WORKSHEE CRIMINAL CRIMINAL     WORKSHEE CRIMINAL	THOFBinding	-state nature of agreemer				no agreement t trial trial	AOC USE ONLY. DO NOT WRITE IN SPACE BELOW
CONVICTED OFFENSE TITLE	1	AOC CODE	MD. CODE, ART. & SECTION	STAT. MAX	DOCKET	NUMBER	SUS
1st Robbery			27/486	<i>10</i> Y	00000007		ACT
2nd Assault		11	CL		00000007		PRORAN
3rd							REST
OFFENSE SCORE(S) (Offense Against a Person Only) 1st Off 2nd Off 3rd Off A. Seriousness Category	OFFENDER SCORE A. Relationship to CJS When	GUIDELINES RANGE	ACTUAL SENTENCE		Imposed, suspended, t fine, restitution, comm	time served, probation, junity service	01
01 01 01 = V-VII	Instant Count Occurred 0 = None or Pending Cases	1st Offense	1st Convicted Offense	9	Subsequent offender	1 Yes 2 No	02 <u> </u>
$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	D= Court or Other Criminal Justice Supervision	_ <u>5Y</u> 2nd Offense					sus
10 10 10 = I B. Victim Injury	B. Juvenile Delinquency D= Not More Than One Finding of Delinquency	<u></u> то 18М			3		ACT
0 0 = No Injury 1 1 1 = Injury, Non-Permanent	or over age 25 1 = Two or More Findings, No or One Commitment	3rd Offense	2nd Convicted Offens	•	Subsequent offender	1 Yes 2 No	FI
2 2 2 = Permanent Injury or Death C. Weapon Usage	2 = Two or More Commitments C. Prior Adult Criminal Record	<sup>TO</sup>					cs
0 0. 0 = No Weapon	0 = None	OVERALL					SUS
Image: Open state     1     =     Weapon Other Than Firearm       2     2     2     =     Firearm or Explosive	5 = Major 5 = Moderate	RANGE (For Multiple Counts Only)		0	Subsequent offender	1 Yes 2 No	
D. Special Vulnerability of Victim	D. Prior Adult Parole/Probation Violations 0= No 1 = Yes	6У_то					CON PRO
1 1 1 = Yes		<u>15Y</u>					REST CS
0 4 0 2 OFFENSE SCORE (S)	0 2 OFFENDER SCORE		INSTITUTIONAL/PAR	OLE REC	OMMENDATION/AL	DITIONAL INFO.	TLRANGE
REASON IF ACTUAL SENTENCE DEPARTS FROM GO	IDELINES NANGE						TOTALI
							TOTALS
							TF1
							TCS
			G	K		S.A.	
SENTENCING JUDGE	SIGNATURE	_	WORKSHEET COMPLETED B	-		TITLE	TUSE
	COPIES: White-Judge; Blue-AOC; Green-Attac	amitment	I. t or Probation Order; Yellow-File	e; Pink-Prosec	ution; Gold-Defense		(Rev. 7/87)

E-42

12

# SAMPLE CASE 8

OFFENDER'S NAME: D W DOCKET NO: 00000008 DATE OF BIRTH: 02/10/60 DATE OF PLEA/VERDICT: 09/01/86 DATE OF PLEA/VERDICT: 09/01/86 DISPOSITION TYPE: Jury Trial JURISDICTION: Prince George's County CONVICTED COUNTS: Manufacture of PCP 27/286(b)(2)

#### OFFENSE DESCRIPTION:

On 07/19/86, police, acting on a search warrant, conducted a search of the defendant's home. Police found a small lab and confiscated a number of chemical compounds and three 1/2 liter bottles of suspected PCP. Later chemical tests were positive for PCP. On 09/01/86, the jury found the defendant guilty of manufacture of PCP.

#### OFFENDER'S PRIOR RECORD:

#### JUVENILE:

Date	Offense			Disposition			
			8)	A STREET			
12/28/75	Possession	of	Marfjuana	Delinquent;	probation		
07/05/76	Possession	of	LSD	Delinquent;	probation		
				continued			

### ADULT:

Date	Offense	Disposition				
01/06/80	Possession of LSD	6 months, all but 10 days suspended; 1 year probation				
04/10/83	Daytime Housebreaking	6 months				
07/20/84	Distribution of PCP	5 years, 3 years suspended;				
	Carrying a Handgun	l year concurrent				

Offender is currently on probation.

### COMPUTATION OF OFFENSE AND OFFENDER SCORES MANUFACTURE OF PCP 27/286(b)(2)

### OFFENSE SCORE:

There is no offense score for drug offenses.

OFFENDER SCORE:

A. Relationship to CJS When Instant Offense Occurred

Offender was on probation at the time he committed the instant offense. 1 points

B. Juvenile Delinquency

Offender was over 25 years of age at the time of the instant offense. 0 points

- C. Prior Adult Criminal Record
  - Step I Possession of LSD Category V
    Daytime Housebreaking Category IV
    Distribution of PCP Category III
    Carrying a Handgun Category VII

The number of prior convictions according to Seriousness Category is:

SERIOUSNESS	NUMBER OF PRIOR					
CATEGORY	CONVICTIONS					
-						
I	0					
II	0					
III	1					
IV.	1					
V	1					
VI	0					

- Step II Since the most serious prior conviction is in Seriousness Category III, refer to the block in Appendix Table B.1 which indicates one Seriousness Category III conviction. This block identifies the record as "Major".
- Step III An offender with a major record receives 5 points 5 points
- D. Prior Adult Parole/Probation Violations

VII

None. 0 points

TOTAL OFFENDER SCORE 6 points

1

AMA

### GUIDELINES RANGE

An examination of Appendix Table C.la or C.lb shows that the recommended range for manufacture of PCP and an offense score of 6 is 7Y-14Y.

Since the offender in this case is being sentenced pursuant to 286(b)(2) (previous PCP Distribution) which carries a 10-year mandatory minimum, the actual recommended range is 10-14 years, and 10 years is mandatory.

NOTE: If the offender was sentenced under 27/293 as a subsequent offender, the recommended guidelines range would be 14-28 years or double the usual guidelines range.

MARYLAND SENTENCING	TUSI,	midule)					JURISDICTION
GUIDELINES WORKSHEET	D			1 0	D 3 4	0 2 1 0 6	0 16
PSI       DATE OF OFFENSE       DATE OF SENTENCING       DISPOSITION TYPE         Oves 2 No       0       7       1       9       8       6       0       3       1       0       8       7         AT THIS       CONVICTED       CRIMINAL SENTENCING       WORKSHEET #      OF       3       Court trial         NUMBER OF:       0       CRIMINAL EVENT #      OF						t trial	AOC USE ONLY. DO NOT WRITE IN SPACE BELOW
0 1 0 1						(i)di	sus
CONVICTED OFFENSE TITLE		AOC CODE	MD. CODE, ART. & SECTION	STAT. MAX.	DOCKET	NUMBER	ACT
lst	7 7 00 /000/11/00	1 1	27/286	20Y	00000008		STACON
Manufacture of PCP subsequent offen. 2nd	<u>der imder 27/286(b)(2)</u>	4 · · · ·	31,200	201	00000000		PRORAN
		11 1					FI
3rd							REST
		1 1					cs
OFFENSE SCORE(S) (Offense Against a Person Only)	OFFENDER SCORE	GUIDELINES	ACTUAL SENTENCE		Imposed, suspended, t fine, restitution, comm	ime served, probation,	01
1st Off 2nd Off 3rd Off A. Seriousness Category	A. Relationship to CJS When Instant Count Occurred	RANGE 1st Offense	1st Convicted Offense	T	Subsequent offender	OYes 2 No	02
01 01 01 = V · VII	0 = None or Pending Cases	_10Y_TO		L	ouboddun onunder	0105 1210	USE
03 03 03 = IV	-	<u>14Y</u>					
05 05 05 = III 08 08 08 = II	①= Court or Other Criminal Justice Supervision	2nd Offense					sus
10 10 10 = 1	B. Juvenile Delinquency	TO					ACT
B. Victim Injury	O= Not More Than One Finding of Delinquency			- All			CON PRO
0 0 0 = No Injury	or over age 25	3rd Offense	2nd Convicted Offense		Subsequent offender	1 Yes 2 No	FI
1 1 1 = Injury, Non-Permanent	1 = Two or More Findings, No or One Commitment	TO					REST
2 2 2 = Permanent Injury or Death	2 = Two or More Commitments	A Distance of Street and Street a					cs
C. Weapon Usage	C. Prior Adult Criminal Record	OVERALL					
0 0 0 = No Weapon 1 1 1 = Weapon Other Than Firearm	0 = None 1 = Minor	GUIDELINES					sus
1 1 1 = Weapon Other Than Firearm 2 2 2 = Firearm or Explosive	S = Major 3 = Moderate	RANGE (For Multiple	3rd Convicted Offense Subsequent offender 1 Yes 2			1 Yes 2 No	ACT
D. Special Vulnerability of Victim	D. Prior Adult Parole/Probation	Counts Only)					CON PRO
0 0 0 = No	Violations						FI
1 1 1 = Yes	0 = No 1 = Yes	то					REST
							cs
DEASON US ACTUAL SENTENCE DEPARTS EROM CHURSE INFO						TLRANGE	
REASON IF ACTUAL SENTENCE DEPARTS FROM GU	DELINES RANGE		INSTITUTIONAL/PARC	LE RECOI	WMENDATION/AD	DITIONAL INFO.	TURANGE
							TOTALI
							TOTALS
							TOTALN
							TF1
							REST
							TCS
							TRANGE
							TOUT1
			D 17			T) A	TOUT2
SENTENCING JUDGE	SIGNATURE		P N WORKSHEET COMPLETED BY			P.A.	TUSE
COPIES: White-Judge; Blue-AOC; Green-Attac nmitment or Probation Order; Yellow-File; Pink-Prosecution; Gold-Defense (Rev. 7/							

E-46

5

Accessory Before or After the Fact, 9, 10, B-2 Actual Sentence, 5, 14, 20 Adult Record, 11-13, B-1-B-6 Aggravating Factors, 15, 21 Appeals from District Court, 1 Attempt to Commit an Offense, 9, B-2 Board, Sentencing Guidelines, i Case Information, Worksheet, 6-8 Changes to Worksheet, 2, 5 Classification of Criminal Record, Procedures, B-1-B-6 Commitment Order, 5 Concurrent Guidelines Sentence Ranges for Multiple Offenses, In single criminal events, 16-18, E-3-E-28 In sentencing single and multiple criminal events together, 18-20, E-35 Consecutive Guidelines Sentence Ranges More than one Seriousness Category I or II offense, 17-18, E-20 Multiple criminal events, 18-20, E-29-E-42 Conspiracy to Commit an Offense, 9, B-2 Contempt, B-1 Convicted Offenses, In multiple offense sentencing, 7 [16-20 Number, 2, 6-7 Scoring for each, 2, 8, B-1 Convictions Out-of-State, B-2 Court Trials, Disposition Type, 8 Credit for Time Served, 14, 20 Criminal Event Number, 2, 6-7, 16-20 Scoring, 2, 15-20, B-1 Criminal Justice System, Offender's Relationship When Convicted Offense Occurred, 11, 12 Criminal Non-Support, B-1 Criminal Offenses, Maryland, 1, 9 Alphabetical listing, Appendix A How to identify on worksheet, 7 Criminal Record, Juvenile, 12, B-4 Age factor, 12 Commitments, 11, 12, B-4 Findings of delinquency, 12, B-4 Probation violation, adult only, 12 Scoring guidelines worksheet, 11 Criminal Record, Prior Adult, 12, 13 Criteria for Prior Record Form, B-4 Decay factor, B-2 In offender score, 12 Major, minor or moderate, 11, 12, B-1, B-4, B-5, B-6 Out-of-state convictions, B-2

INDEX

Parole violations, 12-13, B-2 Procedures for classifying, 12, B-1-B-6 Probation violations, 12-13, B-2 Criteria for Prior Record Form, 5, B-1, B-4 Death Penalty, 1, 14-15, A-14 Decay Factor in Prior Records, 12, B-2 Defense Counsel, 2, 5 Delinquency, Juvenile, 11, 12, B-4 Departures from the Guidelines, 4 Disposition Types, 6, 7-8 Court trial, 8 Jury trial, 8 Plea agreement, 8 Plea, no agreement, 8 Distribution, Guidelines Worksheet, 2, 4-5 Drug Offenses Definition, 1 Guidelines ranges, 15, 20, C-5, C-7 Guidelines scoring, 8, 11-13, E-7-E-9 No offense score, 8 Sample case, E-7-E-9 Sentencing matrix, C-5 Embezzlement, A-14, B-2 Exclusions from Guidelines, 1 Explosives, 10 False Pretenses, A-14, B-2 Federal Youth Corrections Act, B-1 Feigned Weapon, 10 Felonies Not Listed in Appendix A, 1 Firearms, 10 First Degree Murder Death penalty, 1 Guidelines Sentence, 1, 15, A-14 Goals of Sentencing Guidelines, ii Guidelines Scoring, 8-13 Offender score, 11-13 Offense score, 8-11 Guidelines Sentence, 2-3, 13-21 Departures from, 4 Goals, ii Matrices Person, C-1 Drug, C-5 Property, C-6 Net non-suspended incarceration, 4, 13, 16, 17, 18, 20 Probation, 4, 5

```
Ranges, 2, 13
    Person, C-3-C-4
     Drug, C-7
     Property, C-11
Guidelines Worksheet
  Case Information, 6
  Changes, 2, 5
  Distribution, 2, 4, 5
  In Sample Cases,
    Drug offense, one convicted offense, E-7-E-9
    Mandatory minimum sentence, E-43-E-46
    Multiple criminal events, E-29-E-42
    Multiple convicted offenses, single criminal event, E-14-E-19
    Multiple convicted offenses, two or more Seriousness
      Category I or II offenses in one criminal event, E-20-E-28
    Person offense, one convicted offense, E-3-E-6
    Property offense, one convicted offense, E-10-E-13
    Single and multiple criminal events, E-35-E-42
  Numbering 2, 6-7
  Sample, 3
  Six-part pressure sensitive paper, 2
Gun, Weapon Usage, 10
Handguns, 8
Injury, Victim, 9-10
Instant Offense, Seriousness Category, 9, B-1
Jurisdiction Codes, 6, Appendix D
Jury Trial, 8
Juvenile Delinquency, 12, B-4
  Age factor, 12
  Commitments,12 B-4
  Findings of delinquency, 12, B-4
  Probation violation, adult only, 12
  Scoring on guidelines worksheet, 11, 12
Larceny, A-14, B-2
Local Laws, 1, B-1
Mandatory Sentences, 20
  Subsequent offenders, 20
  Drug offenses, 20
  Sample case, E-43-E-46
Matrices
  Drug offense, C-5
  Offense against a person, C-1
  Property offense, C-9
```

Maximum Statutory Penalties For Maryland offenses, Appendix A Guidelines sentence range in excess of, 20 Merged Offenses in Sentencing, 6 Minimum Statutory Penalties, 20 Misdemeanors Not Listed in Appendix A, 1 Multiple Offense Sentencing, 16-20 Multiple criminal events, 18-20, B-1-B-2 Sample Cases, E-14-E-42 Single criminal event, 16-17 Exception when more than one Seriousness Category I or II convicted offenses, 17, 18 Single and multiple criminal events, 19-20 Municipal Ordinances, 1; B-1 Murder, First Degree Death penalty, 1 Guidelines sentence, 1, 15, 33 New trials after Appeal, 1 Non-Suspended Incarceration, 2, 4, 13, 17, 18, 20, Numbering Convicted offenses, 2, 6-7 Criminal events, 2, 6-7, 15-20 Worksheets, 6-7 Offender Score, 11-13 Offense Score, 8-11, 13 Offenses, 1, 6, 7, 9, Appendix A Out-of-State Convictions, B-2 Parole Commission, 5 Parole and Probation, Division of, 5 Completion of worksheets, 2 Presentence investigations, 2,5 Parole Revocations Excluded from guidelines, 1 Parole Violations, Prior Adult For purposes of guidelines offender score, 12-13 Person Offenses Definition, 1 Firearm offense, 8 Guidelines ranges, 13, C-3 Guidelines scoring, 8-10, 14-15 Sample case, E-3-E-6 Sentencing matrix, C-1 Pleas, 8 Plea Negotiation, 8 Prayers for Jury Trial from District Court, 1 Presentence Detention, 20 Presentence Investigation (PSI), 2, 5

Prior Adult Criminal Record: See Criminal Record, Prior Adult Probation, 4, 5 Probation before Judgment, B-1 Probation Revocations Excluded from guidelines, 1 Probation Violations For purposes of quidelines offender score, 12-13 Property Offense Definition, 1 Guidelines scoring, 8, 11-13 No offense score, 8 Guidelines ranges, 15, C-9, C-11 Sample case, E-10-E-13 Sentencing matrix, C-9 Public local laws, 1, B-1 Reasons for Departing from Guidelines, 4 Receiving Stolen Goods, A-14, B-2 Reconsideration of Sentences, 14 Relationship to Criminal Justice System When Instant Offense Occurred, 11 12 Restitution, 14 Sample Cases Case 1, Offense Against a Person - Single Convicted Offense, E-3-E-6 Case 2, Drug Offense - Single Convicted Offense, E-7-E-9 Case 3, Property Offense - Single Convicted Offense, E-10-E-13 Case 4, Multiple Offenses - Single Criminal Event, E-14-E-19 Case 5, Offenses Against a Person - Multiple Offenses from Categories I and II - Single Criminal Event, E-20-E-28 Case 6, Multiple Offenses - Multiple Criminal Events, E-29-E-34 Case 7, Multiple Offenses from Single and Multiple Criminal Events, E-35-E-42 Case 8, Mandatory Minimum Sentence, E-43-E-46 Sentence, Actual, 2, 13-14 Sentences Concurrent In single criminal events, 15-18. E-3, E-7, E-10, E-14, E-20 In sentencing single and multiple criminal events together, 18-20, E-35 Consecutive More than one Seriousness Category I or II offenses, 17-18, E-20 Multiple criminal events, E-29-E-42 Reconsiderations, 14 Guidelines, 2, 4 Sentencing outside the guidelines, 4 (Rev. 11/88) I-5

Sentencing Guidelines Ranges Drug, C-7 Person, C-3 Property, C-11 Sentencing Matrices Drug Offenses, C-5 Offenses Against a Person, C-3 Property Offense, C-9 Seriousness Category, Convicted Offense, 9, 15, 17, B-1 Shoplifting, A-14, B-2 Single Convicted Offense, 7 Solicitation to Commit an Offense, 9, B-2 State's Attorney, 2, 5 Statutory Maximum Penalties for Maryland Offenses, Appendix A Statutory Minimum Penalties, 20 Subsequent Offenses, 20 Suspended Incarceration, 5, 13 Theft Statute, A-14, B-2 Traffic Offenses, B-1 Unsuspended Incarceration, 2, 4, 13, 16, 17, 18, 20 Victim, Especially Vulnerable, 10 Victim Injury, 10 Violations, Prior Adult Parole, 12-13 Violations, Prior Adult Probation, 12-13 Vulnerable Victim, .10 Weapon Usage Definition, 10 Explosives, 10 Weapons other than firearms, 10 White Collar Offenses, 20-21 Worksheet Case Information, 6 Changes, 2, 5 Completed by, 2 Distribution, 2, 4, 5, In sample cases, Appendix E Numbering, 2, 6-7

I-6

Sample, 3